Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

tew Chamberlin

e l.lu

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

IL

III.

IV.

VI.

VIL

VIIL

IX.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
Dl i et

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

Board of Directors

Wednesday, September 27, 2006
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Board Room
300 Monroe Avenue, NW - Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA

Call to Order

Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Letter of
Agreement with Management Strategists, LL.C and Strategic

Communications Group, LLC for Professional Services
Skot Welch, Diversity Management Strategists, LLC
Joe Joes, Jones Gavan & Helmholdt, LLC

Approval of August 23, 2006, Minutes

Presentation by SMG Food and Beverage, LLC
Ben Booker, Amy Capehart, Chris Reynolds

Committee Reports
a. Operatlons Committee
1. Operations Committee Report

ii. CVB Report
b. Finance Committee
1. Approval of SMG August 2006 Financial
Statements — DeVos Place® and Van Ande] Arena®
il. Approval of CAA August 2006 Financial Statements
SMG Report and Facilities Calendars
Public Comment

Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2006

Adjournment

Fax

Action

Action

Information

Information

Information

Action

Action

Information

303 Monr
Grand Rapids,

DeVos

oe Ave.
MI 49503
616.74
616.74

SME>

2o

OO w



W0 AJOOEIPd WA LOISIOA jeL) 0id Aioje-4ipd Yiim pajesso 4ad

SBUOf a0 '@ UJI9AMA 10XMS
:Aq pejussald

99IAI9S JaWOISND)
jusiadwos Ajjeinynd B yoeanno
Aunwwon/buiwwesboid N

YVO JO alnjn4d ay |

0?0,
[ ®
3 = '
M A Allsydy3aala ¢
[ ]




W00 KIOIDE]Jpd MAVA LIOISIOA [BL) 0id Alojoe-4ipd yim psiesso 4ad

(Ajunwwo))
asiadxa |euta)xa pue (92J0I0AN)

leuiajul yjoq abeians| 0} Ajljige ay| «

yoeal |eqojb yym paseq Ajjeao «
1oeduwl
aul] Wopoq 40} uoijeziwixew 9210)}10M
pue uonezijiqow Ajunwwoo/bujaylew
oluyje Jo auidiosip

ay} Ul pauIquiod sieaA Qg JaNQ ¢

$ODS/SNG AYmm o

vvojoainngsyl |cee



WO AIopeypd MMM UOISIeA (el old Auopedipd yim pajeald 4ad

‘s|eob

JI9y}) 8A8IYyoe 0} suoiedlunuwwod

olbajel)s asn pue sdiysuoijejal

piing AjaAi}oays sjenpiAipul pue

‘suoneziuebio ‘seiuedwod sdiay 577

‘dno.uc) suonesiunwwo?) sibajedys

'suoljn|os AlisiaAip aoejdyiom aAjoaye

Buipjing ui sadAj |je jo suoieziuebio

Uim Bupjiom o} pajesipap sl 977
‘sjsibaje.ns juswobeuepy AysiaAiqg «

:suoneziuebip o

vvDloainndayl [« ee



W05 AIoDEpd MW UOISIOA [BU) Oid A1o0pe-4pd Uim pejesso 4ad

ddvv ¢
|9)xaNAuLdS
BJ0.JOJON
Buijeas umyj
X1 ‘sejleq jo ANQ eyl
yesH Ajoud
aoedsolsay uojey
walsAS yjlesH usysoo
sSjnjiisu] yjjesH uedlisy Uuedllly ¥o
Aepn payun uebiysiinl AN JO WesH
UOIONIISUOD) PIOHO0Y
sbuluuibag buons
:S9pN[OU] ISI WUBI|D paulquio) ©

VYVO JO =lnjn4d ay| @



W00 AJODENPd MAWA LIOJSIOA jel} 04d Alope4ipd v pajeasd 4ad

"W 10} aseq adualphe asIaAIp
alow e yoeal 0} aq ||im Abajens
pabuoid OM] ay) Jo shoo} Ay ay |
‘uieb sanuaaa. wia) Buoj Joj seoljoeld
AIsIaAIp jeulalul ysijgelss pue ueld
yoeasno Ajiunwwos/buiwuwesboid
pasnhoo} Ajjesiuyje ue dojansp

pue ubisap |IM 9IS pue SWJ
:Sn204 josloid o

vvOjoainind syl |« e e



W05 AIoIOEpd MWAWM UOISJOA |eLl 01d Aiope-upd yim pajeasd 4Qd

"S3I)IUNWIWIOD dluedsiH pue ueduawy

-Uuedlyy 8yl yjoq ul aduasaid jayiell

pue anusAal asealdul 0} ‘ublredwed

yoeaujno Alunwiwoo/buiwuwelboud

oluyle ue ybnouyl ‘Ajjeussixs

SNO0} 0} SAljeljiul s1y) Joj ‘sl yjoq
AqQ ‘epeuw aq ||Im siseydws uasy vy ¢

.Buoid isii4 o

VYVO JO =ainjn4d ay | N



oD AIoIDElpd MWM UOISIBA [Bl) o0id Alope-pd Yyim pajealo -Qd

'Ajunwwod
ouljeT] pue uedusWy Uuedly ayj 10}
sbulayo Juswuleuslus Jayjo pue sheid
‘S8oU0d 10} uoieso| Jaiwalid ay} se 4d
2 WA 8yj uonisod (¢ pue ‘Juswabebusa
olignd ybnouy) Juswdojanap pue yoseasal
Buiobuo 1o} aseq e ajeald (z ‘sssualeme
Aunwwod asealoul (| |jm ey} yoeoudde
pajeoej-jjinw e ybnoiyy uebiydip 1sep ul
aouasald s.d4Q pue YVA usijqelsa Jayun4
jeos) Buiyadelanp «

NVid LNJN3IOVON3 OlIfnand
pue HOV3J1NO ALINNININOD ©

VvVvO JO alnjn4 sy | > @



WO AIOPENPd MAWA UOISIOA |l 0id Aiojoe-4pd Lim pajesio 4ad

‘Alunwiwod abebus ued yyo syl ydiym ybnosy)
SHJOMJSU UONEBLUIOUI pUB S}9|IN0 jeuolippe Ajjuap|
Buiwweubo.d

Juswiulelalua 0} pajejal spaau Ajunwiwod Ajuap)

sbuuayo weiboud
ain)n} pue JUsLINDd UO YoBgqpad} SAJONIISUOD Ules)

sbuuayo weiboid
pue sanijioe} S,y 0} s1apes] Ajunwwod adnposu|
slapes| Ajunwiwod
Y}IM SUORBIIUNWIWOD panuiluod 1o} saibajelis dojaaaQg
spidey
puelo ui siapes| Ajiunwwod Yiim sdiysuonejal pjing «
saAno9lqo o

vvojoaimnindayl [-ee



W00 AJOIDERPA MMM UOISIaA |eL} Oid Aiope-pd Yim pajeasd 40d

S}S[IN0 eipawi dluYyl g «

s)sljAiS ® siaqieg/Abig|) «

siapes| uoiuido pue Ajlunwwio?) «
aoualpny j}abie] o

vvojoamnindayl |- ee



WoD AJ00BLPT MMM UOISIOA |BL} Old Aioye4ipd yim pajesso 40d

‘sbuuayo weiboud Jejndod asow sdeysad pue mau
BuiAiuapi Jo asodind ay) Jo} aduaipne }abie) Jo slaquiaw
yum sdnoub snooj jonpuo) :sdnous) snoo4 Bujwwesbold o

‘aoualpne }abie} anoge ay) JO siaquuaw apnjoul pjnoys
SN0} 8saYl °'dd pue YVA 40 sinoj Josuodg :sinoy Ajjioed o
‘BIpaW Juud |20} Jay)o pue ‘suiajing Ajunwiwiod
-y)ie; ‘siapeismau Ajosdiysumoy ul Juswiadeld Joj sajoie dojeaeg

‘sbuuayo
weuboid ssnosip 0} (SMOYS Yje)} Olpes ‘Ssadde djged) Quzwo
1SEOpE0.q pUE OlpeJ/SIS)INO BIpal djuy}e uo sadueleadde abuely
sbunesw
ajnpayos pue siapjoy uoiuido pue siapes| Apuntuwod Ajuap)
'dd ® YVA J0 Aljiqisin/ssaualeme Buisealou
JO [eob ay} yum suoya yoeanno snouea ybnoayl sayainyo
pue ‘suoneziueblio jeussiel; ‘sdnolb Ajunwiwiod Aay ym
sdiysuonejay/sdiysisuped oibajel)s ajeal) :sdiysiaulpied

soljoe] o

vvoloainindayl |-« e



WO AIOIDEHPAd MMM UOISIBA [BU]} 0id Alope-ipd yim pajeass 40d

‘2oualiadxa
Jawolsno buijes piepuels e asuay
pue a2Jopjiom jusyadwod Ajjelnyno
B JO JusawdojaAap ayj a)eljuasuod
llim pue (YINQ) Juswssassy
Juswabeuepy AjisiaAiq ay} ul pauiuapl
se Juawanoiduwi 10} seale Aay

uo Ajjeuiajui snooj |jim ssaoo4d siy| ©

:Buoid puooag o

VYVO JO alnln4 ay | 0



oo AIoyoeypd WAWM UOISIeA |eL old Alopedipd yiim pajeald 4Qd

ixnanog ooy » woging |
Dpmouymnoquom » - ARG PRI i
wonliy 160eas - et hee REdll 4
TRRIEM; NEBU o BN Wit P
AREHSAPATUIN o oAy Rl Spied
OO DRI s U A oy oarampay | o
il | [P {
[T ooy | RETSSHTY |
g nm woamneg (| ooty |
H Amemsir] o
amng =g
ey » fpnmuny
fopgete) » P
iy spreariy o gl i

¢ u un aanjusadiy) ssauisng oy -SI|NS8Y S[qRINSBAY
cecee
eooe
see

vvOloalNind{ oyl |~ e e



W00 AJOYOEIPd WAWM UOISIBA jBL) 04 Asope4ipd yim psjeals 4Qd

Josuad

a)ew saonoeud }saq, ansljeg am ‘nd

Aldwig "saiydosojiyd abpujeg wjooje

pue 0006 OSI @u} Jo }insal Joallp 3y}

ale sjopouw Buinsuod pue ssauisng

1no ‘paspuj ‘Juswabeuew AjisiaAlp

0} yoeoidde juawanoiduwil shonuijuod
pue juawabeue Ajljend) |ejo] «

¢,$8820.d 00060S! AUM

vvojoainindayl |- e e



o9 KIopoeIpd AWWW UOISIaA [ old Alope-ipd UM pajesio 40d

8002 9T ‘Asibuens wowoeBeueyy Aysiang pantasay sy |y

...... P
anouchiy) ' ssasfosd ajenfen3 ‘9
ueld Juswanosdiu]
Asieng e dojereq »
(s) uo wee
Jorueo .
umaeBey . Se0Aoidw3 i juawssassy
SE0IIBS seegiopddng o UMMV PING - AyIonQ JoNpUOD «
MBN 8jBaI) . saofpRld puedrxg sk
p— suBuopag  \YSON Usiased - uitialiscatia
o) pued « fenpPIAIPUY o) amsesy °L
spnpolg B usaL ooy - wagshs
MaN o] souBLIONag Aysrang nosdug Z
< reuogezpiefio
SSIIING LI 'Y sseaiul '

(ssaooud days g) ssaoong iq) Jundanig
soee ABajel)g ssauisng |njssaaong
2000

“mmm e dojaaaq 0} Ajisiaaiq asejdytop Buizinn

vvojoamnindayl|l-ece



Woo KIODENPd MMM UOISIOA [BL) Old Alope-ipd Uim pajesso 4ad

suoijdo Jeah | —
Z Uim Jeal | joeqjuod jo uoneln( «

(000°'99$ :S82IAISS JO BnjeA [enjoy)
Allenuuy 000°12$ 13809 |enjoy
000¢ ‘| 18q0J0Q :9jeQ Mels
sda)g IXeN ©

vvoioainingayl |« e e



W05 Kiopeypd MMM UOISIOA |l 0id Aiojoe-pd uim pajeaso 4ad

Jsuonsanp o
NoA Muey| o

VYVO JO alnjnd ay | N



WO AICIORLPT MMM UOISIaA [el 01d Atojoepd ypm pejeass 4ad

SSUO[* 301 '@ YOS\ 10YS
:AQ pajuasaid

90IAI9S Jawolsn)
Jusladwo) Ajjein)iny ¥ yoeaino
Aunwwon/Buiuwelfoud ¢ 0

WV JO ainng ay]

L R
' ‘.
SV AR Y , S1ISTID3IIVELS INIHWIODYNYHN e
o~ > .‘ . .
SNOLLYY ﬁ%«ﬁ-\_/_z_ﬁwnw > -—- _ > _ .




WO AICIOB[Pd MAWW UOISISA [l 0ld Aiojoe4ipd yym pajesso 404

(Aunwwon)
osiadxe |eula)xa pue (82J0I0NN)
|leulalul yjoq abeitans| 0] Ajljigqe ay| «

yoeal |eqo|b yym paseq Ajjeoo
Joeduwil

SUI| W0110q JOJ UOIJBZIWIXBW 8210))J0M
pue uoiezjjiqow Ajunwiwoo/bunsyiew
dluyje jo auidiosip

9Y] Ul pauiquod sieah ¢ JanQ

¢ODS/SNA Ay ©

vvOljoamningayl | -e




WO AIGIOBHPA MMM UOISIaA [el) 0id Alojoe4ypd ypm pajesis 4agd

‘s|eob

118y} ©A8Iyoe 0] Suoljedlunwuwo?

olbsjel)s asn pue sdiysuone|a.

PIINg AjaAjoays sjenpiaipul pue

‘'suoneziuebio ‘seluedwoos sdisy 577
‘dnou9 suopealunwwon s1baje)s

'suolnjos Ajisianip aoe|dyiom aAoaye

Buip|ing ul sadA; |je jo suoneziuebio

Ynum Bupjiom o} peresipep si 77

‘sysibajenys yuswoabeueyy Aysianiq

:suoneziuebiQ o

vvOjoamnindayl | «e




WO3 AI0Io )Jpd MMM UOISIaA [el) 01d Asojoe4ipd uim pajeso 4ad

ddvv
|[21XaNAuLIdS
BJOJOJOIN
Bunjeag uimij
X1 ‘sejleq jo Auo syl
yjiesH Ajiond
aoedsolay uoje]
Wa)sAS yjleaH usyson)
S1NJisu| yjjesH uedliswy Uedujy yo
Ae\ pajun uebiyoi “pp Jo LeaH
UoI}oNJ}SU0)) PJOPO0Y
sbuluuibag buosg
-S9pNJoU 817 Jusl|D psulquio) o

vvOJoamningayl | e




WO 1010 Jpd WAM UOISIaA [el) 0id Alojoe43pd yim pajesso 4ad

'VVO 10} aseq aoualpne aSJaAIp
aJow e yoeal 0] aq |Im AB3jens
pabuoid om] ay) Jo snooj Asy ay|
‘uleb snuaaal wus) 6uoj Joy seoroeld
AlisJanp [eusalul ysijgelse pue ueid
yoealino Ajlunwwoo/Buiwuwelsbold
pasnooj Ajjeosiuyie ue dojansp

pue ubisap [IM HOS pue ST
:SN20- Josloid o

vvOjoammngayl | e




WG AICIIEIPd WWA UOISIaA [el) 01d Aiojoespd ypm pereass 404

'S31JIUNWWOD ojuedsiH pue uedlBWY
-uedll)y ayj ylog ul aduasaid ja)iew
pue anuaAal asealdui 0] ‘ubiedwe?
yoealno Ajunwiwoo/buiwuwesbold
oluyje ue ybnouy} ‘Ajleuiaixa

SNJ04 O] dAljeNIUl SIy) Jo) ‘swuly Yjoq
Aq ‘spew aq |m siseydws usay v

:buoud 18114 o

vvOJjoamndayl | e




005" AI0JOBPA MMM UOISIaA [els) 0id Alojoe4ipd yum pajeasd 4ad

‘Alunwiwod
oul}e] pue uedlBWY ueduyy ay) Joj
sbuliayo Juswuieusius Jayjo pue sAeid
‘SJa2U09 10} uoljeoo| Jaiwaid ay] se 4
2 VVA 9y} uonisod (¢ pue qusawabebus
ollgnd ybnouy) Juswdojansp pue yoleasal
Buiobuo Joj aseq e a)eald (g ‘ssausieme
Ajlunwwod aseauoui (| [im 1eY) yoeoiadde
pajaoe)-jjnw e ybnouayy uebiysiy 1SN Ul
aouasald s,dq pue YVvA ysiigelse Jayun4
|eos) BuiyaielanQ

NVid LNJIN3FOVON3 Ol149Nnd
pue HOV3d1NO ALINNINNOD ©

vvOloamningayl | -e




0o AI0JOEJpd MMM UOISIaA [ell} 0id Alojoe4spd yim pajessds 4dd

‘Aunwiwod abebus ued Yy ayl yasiym ybnoayl
S)JOM}BU uoljewloul pue s}a)ino jeuollippe Ajiusp|
Buiwwesboud

Juswiuielalus 0] pajejal spasu Ajlunwiwod Ajjuap|

sbulsayo weiboid
alnjnj pue jusiind Uo YoBeqpaa) aAIJONIISUOD ules)

sbuliayo weiboid
pue sajjijioe) s,y 0} siapea] Alunwwod aonpodiu|

siopes| Alunwwod
YIM suoljesiunwiuiod panuijuod 1o} saibajel)s dojanaq

spidey
puelo) ul siepes| Ajlunwiwod yum sdiysuornjelal pjing

saAnoalqo o

vvOjoamnngayl | - e




W03 AI0j0EIPd MWAWM UOISIaA [el} 01d Aiojoe4pd yim pajeasd 4ad

S}9)INo elpaw oluylg

s1s11A1S % siagieg/ABis|D

sJapes| uoluido pue Ajlunwwon
aoualpny j}abie] o

vvydjoaimnndayl| -e




0o AI010epd AWM UOISIaA |el) oid Aiojoe4ipd yim pajeaso 4ad

‘sbuniayo wesbouid sendod aiow sdeyiad pue mau
BuiAyyuapi jo asodind ay} 1o} aosuaipne jobie)} Jo siaquiswi
ypm sdnolb snooj jonpuos :sdnois) snooq4 buiwwesboiq o

‘aousipne Jobie) anoge ay) Jo siaquiaw apnjoul pjnoys
SN0} 8say] 'dq pue YW JOo sino) Josuodsg :sinoj Ajjioeqd o

"elpawi jud [e20] Jayjo pue ‘sunsjing AJunwiwos
-yye} ‘s1apeismau Ajo/diysumo) ul Juswasoeld 1o} sejoipe dojensq

‘sbuliayo
welboid ssnosip 0] (SMOYS Y|e} Olpel ‘ssadoe a|qed) s19|ino
}seopeoiq pue olpel/s}ajino eipau ojuyle uo sasueleadde abuely

sbunesw
a|npayos pue siep|oy uojuido pue siapes| Ajunwiwod Ausp)

"da 8 YVA 10 Aljiqisin/ssauaieme Buisealoul

Jo |eob ay} yum spuoys yoealino snolea ybnoayy sayoinyod
pue ‘suoljeziuebio jeussjel) ‘sdnolb Ajiunwiwod A8y yum
sdiysuonejai/sdiysiauped oibsels ajeal) :sdiysiauped

soljoe] o

vvOjoamn4ayl | -e



oo AIojoelpd MMM UOISIaA [ew) 0id Aojoe4upd yim pajeaso 4ad

‘@oualladxe
lawo)sno buijes piepuels e aouay
pue aolopjiom Juayadwod Ajjelnyjnd

e JO Juswdojansp ay) 9)eljusaouod

M pue (YINQ) Juswssassy
Juswabeueln AlisiaAI] 8y) ul paljijuspl
se Juawanoidwi Jo) seale Aay

uo Ajfeusajul snooj |[Im ssedo4d siy |

:buoid puoosg o

vvOJoamningayl | -e




WO AIOJoBIPd MMM UOISIaA [el) ald Alojoedspd yym pejeass 4ad

Iasgptug frenmsl) o PIRICY
Worsugogiog « AR EoRpEY
wriakiry Owexs o
BARLW, BRG] « 100 PRISE)
ATUA (PO o ooy
VB BIGUY o P WSS STED0Y
AR -
Fimi(] » o
SRS .
e ?n\a - dgremy
Rl
AgpeRuy o pien
LIRT? 3 .Yw - it
o) - exouy o |
MR - nhmdey w tanoang
PEAIATY - FROPIR RN Xy
ss1n5880%
ee
280
W MMM w2~@59=~ ssauisng aijj (yjnsay ajqeinseapl
0000
c000
(X X J

vvyoloammndayl| - e




WO AIOJEPd MAVA UOISIaA [el)) 014 Auojoe4ypd yym pajeasd 4ad

J1osLad

9y ew saoljoeld 1saq, aAaljleg am ‘Ind
Aldwig "saiydoso|iyd abpujeg wjooep
pue 0006 OSI 8y} Jo jnsal joalip ay)
aJe s|spow Bulynsuoo pue ssauisng
Ino ‘paspu| Juswabeuew AjISIoAIp

0] yoeoidde juswaroidwi sSnonuiuoo
pue juswabeuey Aljend |e1o L

¢,889001d 00060SI| AUM

vvOjoamnngayr| -e




{05 AI0J0BLPA MW UOISIaA [ell) 01d Aloyoepd yim pajeasd 4ad

9002 91 ‘sisiBagens juawebeuey Aysiong paniesay siB IV

eeeereeenreneeeierentensenereentnstIensrnenseseetesentesenseieestentetesttsrsessasassrstttastess >
w anosdw) ' ssasBoid ajenjeas ‘s
w ueld usweaaoidw
: Aisianq e dojenaq
: (s) uoidureyn g wea ).
: Ayunuiwog Aysienq e ysiigeis3 -
: 2 SIBWOISNYD
: um aesbajuy . SeAodua ypm juswissassy
H ’ ssauasemy pjing - ISI9AI] JONpUo)) «
: saoInag aseg Jonddng o) uasemy piing Ausiang yonpuod
: M3N 8jeal) - saoieId puedx] . S30Noeld
: S1aNIq ystqess3 -
m sovEN —— Aystanq ysiiqels3 warsks Ausiong
: ino\ puedx3 . [enpiapu| noj, anseay ‘|
: spnpoig » wea) aaadw) - wayshs
: MBN ajeal) - soueuLozog Ris1ang anoudw) g
I feuogeziuebio

asealou] ‘¢

$S320N§ 8JeIqelRD v

e
800
00006
20060

20000 e dojanag o3} Ajisianiqg adejdydopn Buizinn

000
000

(ssao0ud dajs g) ssasong Joj Juudan|g

ABajens ssauisng |njssaaong

vvOJjoamningayl | -e




000" AIOJOBPd MMM UOISJaA |els} oid Alojoedipd yym pajeasd 4dd

suolndo Jesh | —
Z Uim Jeal | joeqjuo?) jo uoijeinq

(000‘99¢% :S921M8S JO BnjeA [enjoy)
Allenuuy 000°L2$ :31s0D [enjoy
000¢ 'L 49qoQ :9leq Mels
sda)s IXxeN ©

vvOjoamnngayl [ «e




0D AI0IOBPd MMM UOISIaA |els 0ld Aiojoe4ipd yim pajeasno 4ad

ssuonsanp o
NOA Juey] o

vvOloammngayl| -e




Item II

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A
LETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH DIVERSITY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGISTS, LLC AND STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP,
LLC FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, Diversity Management Strategists, LLC ("DMS") and Strategic
Communications Group, LLC ("SCG") have presented a proposal to the Grand Rapids-Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA") for design, development and implementation
of a diversity management system/community outreach plan (the "Proposal"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA has determined to accept such Proposal pursuant to the terms of a
letter of agreement (the "Letter Agreement") in the form presented at this meeting between DMS
and SCG and the CAA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the Letter Agreement is approved and the Chairman is authorized and
directed to execute the Letter Agreement for and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the
provisions of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

GRAPIDS 61448-994 191794



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: September 27, 2006

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager of the Grand
Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the
CAA at a meeting held on September 27, 2006, and that public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: September 27, 2006

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager

GRAPIDS 61448-994 191794v1



Item II

STRATEGIC
COMMUNICATIONS
GROUP uc

L]
o DI VERSITY
9

. . MANAGEMENT STRATEGISTS

September 21, 2006

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
303 Monroe, N.-W.

Grand Rapids, Michigan

Re:  Professional Services for Diversity Management and Community Qutreach

Dear Boardmembers:

The team of Diversity Management Strategists, LLC ("DMS") and Strategic
Communications Group, LLC ("SCG") proposes to design, develop and assist in the
implementation of a diversity management system/community outreach plan (the "Program") for
the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority ("CAA"). The Program will be
undertaken in accordance with the proposal attached hereto and incorporated herein (the
"Proposal"). The Proposal will include the completion of a diversity management assessment
and the development of an ethnic programming/community outreach campaign, including
conducting at least two focus group sessions, to increase market presence in both the African-
American and Hispanic communities.

Should you approve this letter of agreement, we will commence work on October 1,
2006, for a term of one year, provided the CAA may upon 30 days' written notice to us prior to
the end of the then current term extend this letter of agreement for two additional one-year terms
for the same annual not to exceed fee as that applicable to the initial term.

During the initial term of this letter of agreement we will be compensated for our services
in an amount not to exceed $21,000 plus our actual out-of-pocket expenses approved in advance
by the CAA's Executive Director. We will be paid $250 for each three-hour block of work we
perform for a total of not to exceed 252 hours. We will keep written documentation of the time
devoted to the Program which will be available to the CAA upon request. We agree to invoice
the CAA for services performed monthly and each invoice will identify on a daily basis the
service performed, the individual performing the service and the time devoted by such person to
performing the service. DMS will invoice for the services performed by both SCG and it and the
CAA will make payment to DMS within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.

Skot Welch will be the person primarily responsible for performing the services for DMS
and Joe Jones will be the person primarily responsible for performing the services for SCG. Any
change in personnel shall require the prior approval of the CAA Executive Director.



We agree, upon their completion, to provide the CAA a copy of the diversity
management assessment and a written report summarizing each focus group session. In addition,
we will provide the CAA with quarterly written updates regarding the progress of the design,
development and implementation of the Program and the results thereof as well as such other
reports and updates as the CAA Executive Director may reasonably request.

Both DMS and SCG represent that we maintain and will continue to maintain
professional liability insurance during the term of this letter of agreement and any extensions
thereof. Upon request we will provide the CAA certificates evidencing such insurance.

This letter of agreement may be terminated by the CAA at any time upon 30 days' written
notice to DMS and SCG, provided, DMS and SCG will be compensated for all services it
performs pursuant to this letter of agreement before the termination date and the CAA will be
entitled to all work-product for which compensation has been paid.

To the extent there is a conflict between the provisions of this letter of agreement and the
Proposal the provisions of this letter shall control.

If the terms of this letter of agreement are acceptable please sign it below and return a
copy to us. We look forward to working with the CAA and its facilities manager, SMG, to
provide a high-quality Program that supports the CAA's objectives and contributes to its
continuing success.

Very truly yours,

DIVERSITY MANAGEMENT STRATEGISTS,
LLC

Skot Welch, Member

STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP,
LLC.

Joe Jones, Member



The above letter of agreement is approved and accepted on September 27, 2006.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Steven R. Heacock, Chairman

GRAPIDS 61448-994 191792vl



Item 11

Diversity Management System
Assessment & Implementation

&

Community Outreach/Public Engagement
Proposal

"ﬁ
»
T

e DIVERSITY

MANAGEMENT STRATEGISTS

*a JONES
| § GAVAN &
HELMHOLDT T

Strategic Communications

Grand Rapids-Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority
Mr. Richard MacKeigan

Proposal No. 02.06.01
February 6, 2006

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Table of Contents

Executive Summary 3
Statement of Understanding 4
Development Process 4
Phase Descriptions 5
Project Cost and Payment Schedule 6-7
Project Adminstration 7
Trade Agreement Portion In Lieu of Payment 7
Summary 8
Project Approval 8

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Executive Summary

Diversity Management Strategists, LLC (DMS) is dedicated to working with
organizations of all types in building effective workplace diversity solutions. DMS uses a
management systems approach to building diversity in an organization; this approach
emphasizes process management, measurement and benchmarking, and continuous
improvement. It is the foundation for all of our training and consulting activities. Our
process centered approach will enable GR-KC CAA to integrate it's diversity initiative
with other existing process centered initiatives including the ISO9001:2000 & Six Sigma.

Jones Gavan & Helmholdt, LLC helps companies, organizations, and individuals
effectively build relationships and use strategic communications to achieve their goals.
We offer a variety of services, which alone, or in combination, provide quality, results-
oriented strategies. We take pride in our experience, strong community relationships,
and proven results. However, as disciplined campaign and communications
professionals, we recognize our success can only be as great as yours. We become
part of your team and, through evaluation and collaboration, we select those strategies
and communications solutions that will generate the results you desire.

This proposal will outline our systematic approach for building an effective Diversity
initiative for both internal and external stakeholders. A structured approach will be used
to plan and execute a workplace diversity strategy, deploy the tactics needed to achieve
desired goals, and follow through with continuous improvement to hold the gains and
move forward.

Our developmental process provides the activities, deliverables, and milestones at each
critical phase. This process provides easy to understand information about the project’'s
progress and success to the shareholders and stakeholders of Grand Rapids-Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority (GR-KC CAA).

Our development efforts will mirror the opportunities for systems improvement as
indicated by the Diversity Management Assessment™ (DMA) results conducted at the
outset of the project as well as other criteria introduced by the Steering Team formed at
the same time. We firmly believe that measurement is a mandatory step for
improvement.

DMS will also provide diversity workshops for all employees that can also be
customized to meet any specific needs.

DMS and Jones Gavan & Helmholdt, LLC (JG&H) look forward to working with the team
members at GR-KC CAA to provide a high-quality Diversity Management Process and
Community Marketing Plan that supports business objectives and contributes to the
organizations ongoing success!

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Statement of Understanding

DMS and JG&H will design and develop a diversity management system Community
Impact Marketing Plan to reach a more diverse audience base for GR-KC CAA. This
process will focus internally on key areas for improvement as identified in the Diversity
Management Assessment (DMA) and will concentrate on the development of processes
and techniques to enhance workforce diversity and employee productivity. The process
will also focus externally, through a multi-pronged ethnic marketing campaign, to
increase revenue and market presence in both the African-American and Hispanic
communities.

DMS and JG&H will develop an action plan to build workplace diversity excellence with
a goal of GR-KC CAA becoming a benchmark for workplace diversity practices and
community attendance and event participation. The action plan will incorporate a variety
of activities including the deployment of our Workplace Assessment that will provide
insight into the targeted areas for improvement. DMS and JG&H will provide support to
the diversity chairperson, diversity team, departmental management and team
members, community outreach strategies and tactics as well as an array of diversity
training workshops.

Design & Development Process

Overview
DMS will use our Systems Development Process to ensure that consulting and training

activities meet targeted expectations.
This structured approach can be easily communicated to anyone involved in the

developmental process and can also be used to track progress. A timeline will be
assigned for each step in the process as well as for project milestones.

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Phase Descriptions:

l. Diversity Management System Preparations (Year 1)

DMS will provide GR-KC CAA with a comprehensive plan for the development and
implementation of a Diversity Management System. This initial plan will continue to be
tailored to meet the specific needs through the following stages of the project. The
results of the Diversity Management Assessment (DMA) will be used to develop the
overall strategy and tactical plan for the execution of the developmental and training
services. Awareness and sensitivity training will also be provided to employees to
provide an orientation to Diversity and open channels of communication.

Il. Strategic and Tactical Planning (Year 1)

A strategic plan will be established to guide our overall diversity effort, which will include
the locations, resources needed to be involved, and outline the timeframes of
involvement. A tactical plan will then be developed to identify the specific training and
consulting activities needed to support the overall strategy.

lll. Diversity System Development (Year 2 & 3)

Consulting services will be provided to develop or improve the processes needed to
complete a diversity management system. Processes can relate to various functional
areas or be global to GR-KC CAA. Many of the process needs are learned early through
the results of the Diversity Management Assessment and processes pointed out by
senior management that requires improvement. As the processes are completed, the
tactical training plan will be updated and deployed. Pre-established performance
measures will be implemented to track progress.

IV. Validation and Continuous Improvement (Year 3 & 4)

As the diversity system takes hold it will be important to validate the adherence to the
established diversity processes, which can be accomplished by auditing the system via
direct interviews with various employees from all levels and locations of GR-KC CAA.
DMS will train a team of employees in structured auditing techniques and guide them on
the first audit to build confidence and practical experience.

The results of the validation process along with the performance measures results from
phase Il will help guide ongoing Continuous Improvement. A structured Continuous
Improvement process will be established that will include a scheduled timeframe for
review of results with executive management.

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



JG&H COMMUNITY OUTREACH and PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT PLAN
Overarching Goal

* Further establish VAA and DP’s presence in West Michigan through a multi-
faceted approach that will 1) increase community awareness, 2) create a base
for ongoing research and development through public engagement, and 3)
position the VAA & DP as the premier location for concerts, plays and other
entertainment offerings for the African American and Latino community.

Strategy

l COMMUNITY AWARENESS & ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY

Objectives

Build relationships with community leaders in Grand Rapids. (ongoing)
Develop strategies for continued communications with community leaders.
(months 1-3)

Introduce community leaders to GRKCCAA's facilities. (ongoing)

Gain constructive feedback on current and future program offerings (months
1-3 & 6-12)

Introduce existing GRKCCAA programming and services to community
leaders and organizations. (months 1-3 & 3-6)

Identify community needs related to entertainment programming. (months 1-
3 &6-12)

Identify additional outlets and information networks through which the
GRKCCAA can engage community. (ongoing)

Target Audience

Tactics

Community and opinion leaders
Clergy

Barbers/Stylists

Ethnic media outlets

= Partnerships: Create strategic partnerships/relationships with key
community groups, fraternal organizations, and churches through various
outreach efforts with the goal of increasing awareness/visibility of VAA &
DP.
¢ Develop information packets to distribute to community members.
(months 1-3)
« Identify community leaders and opinion holders and schedule meetings
(ongoing)

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



e Arrange appearances on ethnic media outlets/radio and broadcast
outlets (cable access, radio talk shows) to discuss program offerings.
(ongoing)

o Develop articles for placement in township/city newsletters, faith-
community bulletins, and other local print media. (ongoing)

= Facility Tours: Sponsor tours of VAA and DP. These tours should
include members of the above target audience.
e Conduct small group tours. (ongoing)
o School field trips. (ongoing)

* Programming Focus Groups: Conduct focus groups with members of
target audience for the purpose of identifying new and perhaps more
popular program offerings. (months 1-3 & 6-12)

o Reward participants with comp tickets.

Project Cost & Payment Schedule

Actual costs for the tasks as part of this initial effort are outlined below. However, DMS
and JG&H have agreed to provide all services except for $14,000 via a trade agreement
between GR-KC CAA for VIP passes/Tickets/Suite Access:

The costs related to each of the four phases of the diversity systems development

process and Community Outreach are outlined below:
Please Note All numbers below are listed at customary billable day rate of $2,000.

Services Days Cost
Daily Consulting/Training Rate: $2,000
Phase I:
e Team Formation (Months 1-3) 1 day $ 2,000
e Cultural Diversity Training for Diversity 1 day $ 2,000
Action Council (DAC) (Months 4-6)
¢ Diversity Management Assessment Max. of 70incl. Bd.  $ 6,500
(Month 1 & Annually) Of Dir.
Phase II:
e Steering Team Meetings & 5 days $ 10,000

Departmental Support over 12 month
period (Months 1-12 and Ongoing)

e Alignment of Improvement Initiatives 2 days $ 4,000
and Action Planning from DMA

(Months 3-6 and Ongoing)

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Phase lii:

o Diversity Process Development & 1 day $ 2,000
Documentation (6-12 and Ongoing)

e Employee Training Emp.+ Bd. Not to 1 1/2 days $ 3,000

exceed 70 participants — 3 - 4 hr.

Workshops (Months 3 & 4 and Ongoing) 1 day $ 2,000
e Performance Measurement ;
(Months 6-12)

Phase IV:

¢ Validation & Corrective Actions 1/2 day $ 1,000
e Continuous Improvement Process 1/2 day $ 1,000
e Planning for Self Management 1/2 day $ 1,000
e (Months 13-18 and Ongoing)

Travel Costs:

Auto Mileage ($0.365/mi) At cost $
Lodging (at cost stay if required) At cost $

Air (at cost if required) At cost $

Per diem ($34/day for overnight stays) $34/night $

Travel Rate ($86.50/hr. - $260max./day At cost $

when over 4 hours)

Other Expenses:

Mailings, fax, phone (at cost if required) At cost $
Training Materials ($15/manual) At cost $

Total Cash Cost $*
Actual Contract Cost $

Plus travel& mtls.

Payment Schedule

The estimated cost for the Diversity Management System and Community Ethnic
Marketing Outreach services is $XX with the exception of travel and training manual
costs.

The payment schedule will include an initial invoice of $7,000. Monthly invoices will be
processed thereafter for the planned advisory-day requirements as agreed upon by the
Diversity team and will not exceed an additional $7,000 for a total cash cost of $14,000.
Separate invoices will be prepared for travel and material costs at the close of each

month.

Monthly invoices will be submitted on the 1%t of each month with payment requested
within 15 days until the balance of $7,000 is paid in full. Any modifications to the costs,
duration or level of support for the project must receive written approval by GR-KC CAA
and DMS and JG&H before they can be made.

Trade Agreement in Lieu of Remaining Balance*

8
GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Understanding that the actual amount of the services rendered to GR-KC CAA may be
cost prohibitive, DMS and JG&H, in discussion with Mr. MacKeigan, have agreed to
allow the organization to settle the outstanding balance of the total contract cost through
agreeing to items offered by GR-KC CAA which would be used by DMS and JG&H for
client relationship development of their respective organizations. Summarily, DMS and
JG&H are requesting the following:

° Access to Suite(s) for both Sport/Non-Sport Events
° Ten (10) - Tickets at ‘Will Call’ for any event giving Mr. MacKeigan reasonable
advance notice. A calendar provided by the client would allow organizations to

pre-select.

° Eight (8) - VIP Tickets with access to Pre and/or Post event reception to
Ethnically targeted events.

° Four (4) — Parking Passes per each event

Project Administration

DMS and JG&H will appoint Mr. Skot Welch and Mr. Joe Jones respectively as project
managers to oversee and provide many of the specified services. The project can begin
as mutually agreed to by after receiving a signed contract from GR-KC CAA and the
initial payment of $7,000. The project will end the day upon completion of the advisory-
day obligation has been fulfilled.

DMS and JG&H will prepare a monthly summary or project status at each milestone
shown in the timeline or project plan. Open channels of communication between DMS,
JG&H and GR-KC CAA will be needed and designated contacts shall be established to
minimize potential miscommunications.

Summary

DMS and JG&H are uniquely positioned to meet GR-KC CAA's diversity management
needs. We offer a comprehensive, systematic approach that includes measurement,
benchmarking, skill development, process improvement and market enrichment.

Our services are designed to strategically improve your success and effectiveness in
the marketplace by helping you create a workplace where everyone can grow and
flourish.

We look forward to the opportunity to support your Diversity Systems and Ethnic
Marketing Outreach!

GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Project Approval: Proposal No. 02.06.01

Diversity Management Strategists, LLC & JG&H, LLC

Skot Welch/Joe Jones

GR-KC CAA Approval

Authorized Signature Purchase Order Number

Date

Please sign and return (fax) one copy of this page to the DMS office.
Fax number: 616-656-5767 Tel: 616-575-7799

10
GRKCCAA.02.06.01



Item III

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, August 23, 2006

I. Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. Chairman Heacock presided

and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance
Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
Birgit Klohs
Gary McInerney
Joseph Tomaselli
Members Absent: Clif Charles
George Heartwell
Staff/Others: Brian Dykema
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
George Helmstead CVB
Lynne Ike SMG
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Bob Mihos Kent County
Steve Miller SMG
Robert Sack Grand Rapids Griffins
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB

II. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the amended Minutes of the July 26,

meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

IIL Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee. The Operations Committee did not meet in August.

1. CVB Update

Mr. Wilson reported that the United Church of Christ convention is confirmed for June 2009. The

convention will utilize 8,000 room nights. A recent lodging industry study reveals that hotel revenue and
occupancy is up 122.5% year-to-date through June, while rates are up 7%. The Mr. Helmstead presented
a report on recent sales activities and major bid presentations.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 23, 2006 -2

b. Finance Committee
1. SMG June 2006 Financial Statements for DeVos Place®
and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended June 30, 2006. After review and
discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

ii. SMG July 2006 Financial Statements for DeVos Place®
and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended July 31, 2006. After review and
discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

iii. CAA June and July 2006 Disbursements and Financial Statements
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the CAA Disbursements and
Financial Statements for the periods ended June 30 and July 31, 2006. After review and discussion, the
motion was unanimously adopted.

iv. Audited Financial Statements for Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Mclnerney, moved to accept the Financial Statements and
Supplementary Information for Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2005. Motion approved unanimously.

The fiscal year 2006 audit should be completed later this fall. Chairman Heacock extended his
appreciation to Bob White for his assistance in completing the financial statements.

Iv. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of First
Amendment to Management Agreement Between CAA and SMG

Attorney Richard Wendt summarized the proposed amendment that would reduce SMG’s annual base fee
from $350,000 to $300,000 in return for execution of the Food and Beverage Services Agreement dated
as of July 1, 2006.

Motion: Mr. Mclnerney, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
has selected SMG Food and Beverages, LLC ("SMGF&B") to provide food, beverage and
catering services at the Van Andel Arena and SMGF &B provides such services pursuant to a
Food and Beverage Services Agreement dated as of July 1, 2006 (the "F&B Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA and SMG have entered into a certain Management Agreement
dated as of July 1, 2006 (the "Agreement”), pursuant to which SMG provides general
management services for the CAA at the Van Andel Arena, DeVos Place and DeVos
Performance Hall; and



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 23,2006 -3

WHEREAS, as a part of the consideration for entering into the F&B Agreement with
SMGF&B, a related entity to SMG, SMG has agreed to reduce its fixed base fee under the
Agreement by $50,000 so long as the F&B Agreement remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, the First Amendment to Management Agreement dated as of July 1, 2006
(the "First Amendment"), between SMG and the CAA amends the Agreement to provide for such
reduction of the fixed base fee; and

WHEREAS, the CAA desires to approve such First Amendment and authorize its
execution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The First Amendment in the form presented at this meeting is approved and the
Chairman is authorized and directed to execute the First Amendment for and on behalf of the
CAA.

2. That all resolutions, parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the
provisions of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Motion approved unanimously.

V. Resolution Appointing Richard MacKeigan Executive Director of the Grand Rapids-
Kent County Convention/Arena Authority Pursuant to the Terms of a Certain Letter Agreement

Attorney Wendt reviewed the terms of the letter agreement, effective as of August 1, 2006. Mr. Heacock
stated that, over the years, Mr. MacKeigan has been kind to step in and handle items that are not SMG
responsibilities, such as easement/property issues and parking. The agreement is unique to Mr.
MacKeigan and not transferable to another general manager who may replace him.

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the following
resolution:

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
(the "CAA") authorize the CAA Board to appoint an Executive Director; and

WHEREAS, the CAA Board desires to appoint Richard MacKeigan as Executive
Director on a part-time basis as described in a certain letter agreement in the form presented at
this meeting (the "Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, Richard MacKeigan has indicated that he is willing to accept such
appointment in accordance with the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. Richard MacKeigan is hereby appointed Executive Director of the CAA effective
August 1, 2006, subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement and as hereinafter
provided.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
August 23,2006 - 4

2. The Chairman is hereby authorized to sign the Agreement for and on behalf of the
CAA and, in order that the appointment may be effective, Richard MacKeigan shall sign and
return to the CAA a copy of the Agreement indicating his agreement to its terms.

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Motion approved unanimously, contingent upon obtaining a fully-executed waiver and
consent from SMG.

VI SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented an update on the upcoming concerts and shows that will be held at DeVos
Place® and the Van Andel Arena®. Chairman Heacock would like Mr. MacKeigan to provide monthly
food and beverage reports. Kristi Yamaguchi will be hosting the 10" anniversary skating event on
October 8. Mr. McInemey asked whether any thought had been given to planning a fundraiser for the
Arena’s 10" anniversary. Mr. MacKeigan responded that the idea has been discussed but an event has
not been identified as a fundraising opportunity. Mr. Heacock suggested hosting a dinner or a meet and
greet with the talent. Mr. Heacock added that it might be a good time to establish a committee
comprised of community citizens to coordinate events. Mr. McInerney suggested forming an entity such
as Friends of the Arena or Friends of DeVos Place®.

VII. Public Comment
None.

VIII. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, September 27, 2006, 8:00 a.m.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:40 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

CONTACT: Andrea Groom
Wondergem Consulting
(616) 235-7467

GRAND RAPIDS BEATS OUT TOP TIER CITIES FOR NATIONAL CONFERENCE
Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention & Visitors Bureau books
National Active & Retired Federal Employee Association leadership convention

Grand Rapids, Michigan (September 21, 2006) — The Grand Rapids/Kent County
Convention & Visitors Bureau (CVB) today announced its triumph over several top tier U.S.
cities, landing the 2010 leadership conference of the National Active and Retired Federal
Employee Association (NARFE). One of the nation’s oldest and largest associations, the
NARFE conference will bring 1,800 delegates from 1,650 chapters across the country. The
conference will use 4,100 hotel room nights, with some delegates staying as many as 10 days,
and generate an economic impact of nearly $1.2 million.

“In the face of first-rate competition we were able to secure this large conference at DeVos
Place,” said CVB President Steve Wilson. “Our ability to capitalize on our city’s walkable
downtown, variety of restaurants and museums and high level of customer service uniquely
positions us for success in this new league of competition. Our customized presentation
strategy, tailoring our message to the needs of the audience, and efforts to connect with
members of the organization really sealed this deal for us.”

- MORE -



PAGE TWO -NARFE

Grand Rapids defeated major convention destinations in the CVB's first attempt to host the
organization. The four other top-tier cities vying for this business included Dallas, TX, Kansas
City, KS, Reno, NV, and Palm Springs, CA. Detroit bid for the conference in 2008 but was not
selected. Grand Rapids initially caught the attention of NARFE’s national president following its
successful bid to host the National Rural Letter Carriers Association in 2007.

“This is the first time the group has held a conference in the Great Lakes region,” said NARFE
Western Region National Field Vice President Forney Lundy. “On behalf of the board of
directors, | want to congratulate Grand Rapids for their success in attracting our conference to
Michigan. Our delegates were really impressed with the variety of activities and accessibility
Grand Rapids has to offer.”

The CVB has 177 conventions on the books at DeVos Place through 2015, representing more
than $65 million in economic impact.

With nearly 360,000 members, the mission of NARFE is to protect the earned rights and
benefits of America’s active and retired federal workers. The largest federal employee/retiree
organization, NAREE represents the interests of nearly five million Federal employees,
retirees, spouses, and survivors.



Item V.b.i.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 57 567 624 624 -
ATTENDANCE 30,938 696,842 727,780 727,780 -
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 137,122 2,186,295 2,323,417 2,323,417 -
ANCILLARY REVENUE 123,269 1,884,359 2,007,628 2,007,628 -
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 260,391 4,070,654 4,331,045 4,331,045 -
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 25,820 205,180 231,000 231,000 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 286,211 4,275,834 4,562,045 4,562,045 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 18,092 122,814 140,906 140,906 -
FINANCE 36,116 169,606 205,722 205,722 -
MARKETING 15,968 62,411 78,379 78,379 -
OPERATIONS 229,822 1,113,921 1,343,743 1,343,743 -
EVENT SERVICES 130,161 831,127 961,288 961,288 -
BOX OFFICE 12,401 61,187 73,588 73,588 -
SALES 35,280 210,492 245,772 245,772 -
OVERHEAD 241,578 1,996,711 2,238,289 2,238,289 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 719,417 4,568,269 5,287,687 5,287,687 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (433,206) (292,435) (725,642) (725,642) -
INCENTIVE FEE 153,702 153,702 153,702 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (433,206) (446,137) (879,344) (879,344) -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

DeVos Place fell below expectations for the month of August, however, still

remains consistent with budget through the first two months of the fiscal year.
The facility hosted fewer events than anticipated during the month, and
spending by those shows in ancillary area's were well short of budget.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending August 31,
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH August August August
Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 24 27 29
Attendance 6,835 14,700 20,818
Direct Event Income $28,048 $53,206 $120,213
Ancillary Income 60,104 109,803 102,429
Other Income 17,838 19,250 5,011
Indirect Expenses (387,772) (379,588) (286,687)
Net Income ($281,783) ($197,329) ($59,034)
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 57 54 53
Attendance 30,938 36,250 32,056
Direct Event income $137,122 $119,300 $170,093
Ancillary Income 123,269 173,719 150,574
Other Income 25,820 38,500 11,490
Indirect Expenses (719,417) (774,896) (594,502)
Net Income ($433,206) ($443,377) ($262,346)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in lower than expected for the month. While the quantity of events was
consistent with budget, many of the events hosted were small meeting events. No events
were hosted in the Performance Hall which contributed to the shortfall.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income was down for the month as well. Spending across all areas fell below
expectations as the mix of events was heavy with small meetings with no meal functions.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in consistent with budget for the month.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/06

----------------- CURRENT - - = = == = == === = mmmmmmm mmmmmmo oo cwmmm e aYTDmm o s mm i mmm e e e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 38,938 55,300 124,913 163,261 125,625 174,189
SERVICES INCOME <10,890> <2,094> <4,700> <26,139> <6,325> <4,096>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 28,048 53,206 120,213 137,122 119,300 170,093
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 26,253 51,480 51,734 45,486 81,832 83,898
NOVELTY 0 500 0 1,673 1,000 0
ELECTRICAL 1,981 14,323 13,130 10,594 21,795 19,397
OTHER ANCILLARY 31,870 43,500 37,564 65,517 69,092 47,279
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 60,104 109,803 102,429 123,269 173,719 150,574
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 88,152 163,009 222,641 260,391 293,019 320,667
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 17,838 19,250 5,011 25,820 38,500 11,490
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 105,989 182,259 227,653 286,212 331,519 332,157
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 10,375 11,743 5,758 18,092 23,486 17,625
FINANCE 22,446 17,143 16,128 36,116 34,286 31,564
MARKETING 10,995 6,531 2,421 15,968 13,062 5,067
OPERATIONS 136,670 119,548 77,076 229,822 245,816 141,795
EVENT MANAGEMENT 67,168 79,859 53,314 130,161 159,718 119,711
BOX OFFICE 7,747 6,133 6,303 12,401 12,266 12,144
SALES 16,387 20,481 12,091 35,280 40,962 22,961
OVERHEAD 115,984 118,150 113,596 241,578 245,300 243,635
INDIRECT EXPENSES 387,772 379,588 286,687 719,417 774,896 594,502
NET OPERATING INCOME <281,783> <197,329> <59, 034> <433,206> <443,377> <262,344>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) <281,783> <197,329> <59, 034> <433,206> <443,377> <262,344>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/06

---------------- CURRENT----------------- -+r-vc-w-w------YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 0 [] 5,944 [ 0 5,944
Changeover Setup Billed 30 0 371 136 0 1,359
Stagehands Billed 20,088 41,400 45,426 69,395 61,900 69,903
Security Billed 951 6,600 13,156 12,715 13,100 19,566
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 0 1,600 2,376 4,930 3,600 3,870
Box Office Billed 0 200 0 500 400 100
Ticketing Service Billed 0 4,000 0 7,018 8,000 902
City Police Fire Billed 0 0 8,980 1,338 0 9,610
EMT Medical Billed 0 300 1,450 1,138 1,025 2,100
Cleaning Billed 24 [] 0 24 0 0
Insurance Billed 1,260 ] 184 1,562 0 387
Telephone Billed 1,810 750 1,800 3,760 1,350 3,755
Other Production Billed 1,269 o] 422 5,106 0 2,094
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 25,433 54,850 80,108 107,618 89,375 119,589
Advertising Expense 9 0 6,114 9 0 6,114
Stagehand Wages 19,011 40,158 41,991 65,501 60,043 64,214
Contracted Security Expense 4,897 6,600 12,223 23,883 13,100 18,015
Ushers & T/T Wages 0 1,120 1,663 3,451 2,520 2,709
Ticket Sellers Wages 0 300 23 380 600 205
Ticket Service Charge Expense 28 1,600 1 3,445 3,200 135
City Police Fire Expense 166 0 8,980 1,501 0 9,610
EMT Medical Expense 357 300 1,706 1,313 1,025 2,294
Contracted Cleaning Expense 8,485 6,866 11,318 26,944 15,212 17,316
Insurance Expense 1,180 0 156 1,319 0 315
Group Sales Commissions 0 0 0 140 0 0
Allocated Telephone Expense 453 0 450 940 0 939
Production Expense 1,737 0 182 4,929 0 1,819
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 36,322 56,944 84,808 133,757 95,700 123,684

NET SERVICE INCOME <10,890> <2,094> <4,700> <26,139> <6,325> <4,096>




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended August 31, 2006

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 25 17 18,950 7,600 150,608 122,163
Consumer/Gated Shows 3 3 2,259 3,000 11,772 14,104
Devos Performance Hall 5 4 4,268 14,400 21,963 28,840
Ballroom Exclusive - 7 - 6,500 - 40,775
Other 24 23 5,461 4,750 76,037 87,137
GRAND TOTALS 57 54 30,938 36,250 260,380 293,019
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 43.86% 31.48% 61.25% 20.97% 57.84% 41.69%
Consumer/Gated Shows 526% 5.56% 7.30% 8.28% 4.52% 4.81%
Devos Performance Hall 8.77% 7.41% 13.80% 39.72% 8.43% 9.84%
Baliroom Exclusive 0.00% 12.96% 0.00% 17.93% 0.00% 13.92%

Other 42.11% 42.59% 17.65% 13.10% 29.20% 29.74%



DE VOS PLACE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED DEPOSITS
REFUND LIABILITY
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDING TO CITY - CASH
FUNDING FROM CITY - NON CASH
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA

TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

AUGUST 31, 2006

1,006,055
276,038
77,074

177,928
428,204
81,924
333,741
8,189
174,277

(750,000)
150,830
(433,206)

1,187,281
154,905

1,359,168

1,204,263

1,359,168

1,359,168



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended August 31,2006

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

26,078
40,555
2,127
22,043
111,861

58,654

5,736
1,696
5,002
2,286

276,038



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/06

----------------- CURRENT - = =+ === === =mmmm-oc smcomcooomcmmamce o YD mmvm oo m oo oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 59,161 70,649 53,379 122,966 141,298 108,670
Part-Time 4,727 13,167 <218> 9,418 26,334 6,581
Wages-Trade 62,288 119,523 62,234 139,787 239,046 118,990
Auto Allowance 2,121 0 2,271 4,242 [} 4,242
Auto Expense 150 2,271 150 300 4,542 300
Taxes & Benefits 35,029 52,188 36,102 68,037 104,376 68,457
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <35,257> <111,581> <59,512> <101, 995> <223,162> <98,379>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 128,219 146,217 94,406 242,756 292,434 208,860
Contracted Security 18,918 26,917 22,925 38,185 53,834 41,601
Contracted Cleaning 1,687 0 1,533 5,451 0 4,011
Other Contracted Services 235 200 224 470 400 447
Travel & Entertainment 2,189 1,209 1,092 2,189 2,418 2,639
Corporate Travel 0 417 0 0 834 0
Meetings & Conventions 2,878 1,958 1,443 7,062 5,416 4,388
Dues & Subscriptions 6717 300 325 1,731 600 1,807
Employee Training 4,885 833 800 4,885 1,666 800
Computer Expense 5,010 6,250 2,724 13,576 12,500 5,631
Professional Fees 4,171 3,042 2,200 6,171 6,084 4,400
Marketing & Advertising 8,037 4,217 215 10,283 8,434 274
Box Office Expenses <18> 0 <126> 18 0 <126>
Trash Removal 21 2,500 533 1,714 5,000 556
Equipment Rental 1,353 1,000 2,174 2,410 2,000 3,147
Landscaping 2,892 833 0 4,455 1,666 0
Exterminating 814 1,000 0 1,628 24,220 939
Cleaning 0 17,000 4,350 0 17,000 4,350
Repairs & Maintenance 48,796 36,462 24,397 77,721 72,924 47,119
Supplies 46,049 18,250 18,564 71,862 36,500 29,543
Bank Service Charges 946 1,500 921 2,204 3,000 1,740
Insurance 13,754 22,232 16,589 29,708 44,464 32,009
Licenses & Fees 0 o] 0 138 0 0
Printing & Stationary 0 917 0 117 1,834 [
Office Supplies 659 750 1,477 149 1,500 2,029
Postage 719 417 4 908 834 194
Parking Expense 4,267 1,500 1,689 4,506 3,000 3,351
Telephone Long Distance 7,212 6,000 2,166 14,231 12,000 4,286
Utilities 71,354 67,000 65,081 150,830 143,000 150,081
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 21,430 25,000 25,000 41,365
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <453> <1,833> <450> <940> <3,666> <939>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 259,552 233,371 192,281 476,661 482,462 385,642
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 387,772 379,588 286,687 719,417 774,896 594,502




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

***Summary based on F/Y 2007 Budget - Benchmarks will adjust after final audit***

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,406,043 (725,642) 680,401 490,254
Benchmark 1,267,881 (677,627) 590,254 534,919
Excess 138,162 (48,015) 90,147 (44,665)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,980,275 4,562,045 9,542,320 9,000,895
Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384
Revenue Excess 380,275 562,045 942,320 743,511
Incentive Fee ** 257,696 -
Total SMG Management Fee 150,000 150,000 557,696 490,400

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item V.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 6 115 121 121 .
ATTENDANCE 16,502 663,998 680,500 680,500 -
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 43,505 1,240,613 1,284,118 1,284,118 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 41,539 1,414,620 1,456,159 1,456,159 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 85,044 2,655,233 2,740,277 2,740,277 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 349,309 1,890,691 2,240,000 2,240,000 -
TOTAL INCOME 434,353 4,545,924 4,980,277 4,980,277 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 19,161 99,684 118,845 118,845 -
FINANCE 29,799 167,459 197,258 197,258 -
MARKETING 32,734 283,260 315,994 315,994 -
OPERATIONS 229,464 1,108,297 1,337,761 1,337,761 -
BOX OFFICE 14,189 92,401 106,590 106,590 -
LUXURY SEATING 9,569 106,206 115,775 115,775 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 6,047 33,809 39,856 39,856 -
OVERHEAD 154,156 1,187,997 1,342,153 1,342,153 -

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 495,119 3,079,113 3,574,232 3,574,232 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (60,766) 1,466,811 1,406,045 1,406,045 -
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 103,994 103,994 103,994
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL (60,766) 1,362,817 1,302,051 1,302,051 -
Comments:

| A

The Van Andel Arena fell below budget for the month, however, remains

consistent with expectations year to date. The American Idol concert
hosted during the month was a sold out show, with many upcoming shows
also selling very strong.

pader (J




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending August 31, 2006
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH August August August

Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 2 2 3
Attendance 11,371 15,600 25,202
Direct Event Income $32,662 $67,938 $57,329
Ancillary Income 29,625 58,940 82,034
Other Income 181,580 186,667 186,191
Indirect Expenses (253,110) (297,242) (267,051)
Net income ($9,242) $16,303 $58,503
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 6 3 6
Attendance 16,502 18,100 35,585
Direct Event Income $43,505 $63,710 $101,081
Ancillary income 41,539 69,185 107,660
Other Income 349,309 373,334 346,201
Indirect Expenses (495,119) (594,484) (530,371)
Net Income ($60,766) ($88,255) $24,570
EVENT INCOME

Event income came up short for the month as it was anticipated that 2 concerts would be hosted. While

the American Idol concert sold out, it did not offset the shortfall of hosting only one concert. The other event
held during the month was a small banquet.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell well below expectations due to the American Idol concert not being a strong ancillary
event (however food & beverage per caps were well up from their last visit), and only hosting one concert.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in under budget for the month, however, not a trend that would suggest a revision
is needed on the fiscal year expectations.




EVENT INCOME

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME
SERVICES INCOME

TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME

ANCILLARY INCOME

FOOD & BEVERAGE
NOVELTY
OTHER ANCILLARY

TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE

MARKETING

LUXURY SEATING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE

SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION
OVERHEAD

INDIRECT EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME

OTHER EXPENSES

NET INCOME (LOSS)

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/06

----------------- CURRENT - =----=---cccmcmmcmce mmmmme e oo e o YD e e s mmm e m e e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
28,922 60,000 52,126 45,682 70,000 107,366
3,740 7,938 5,204 <2,177> <6,290> <6,285>
32,662 67,938 57,329 43,505 63,710 101,081
23,214 42,620 71,017 32,478 47,765 83,939
9,111 16,320 10,268 10,261 21,420 22,972
<2,700> 0 749 <1,200> 0 749
29,625 58,940 82,034 41,539 69,185 107,660
62,287 126,878 139, 364 85,044 132,895 208,741
181,580 186,667 186,191 349,309 373,334 346,201
243,867 313,545 325,554 434,353 506,229 554,941
9,470 9,778 8,747 19,161 19,556 17,365
16,217 16,314 15,279 29,799 32,628 30,383
17,548 26,209 17,348 32,734 52,418 36,317
4,343 9,648 6,137 9,569 19,296 12,043
116,911 111,228 102,804 229,464 222,456 216,736
6,457 8,897 6,554 14,189 17,794 13,909
3,022 3,322 3,666 6,047 6,644 6,155
79,141 111,846 106,516 154,156 223,692 197,463
253,110 297,242 267,051 495,119 594,484 530,371
<9,242> 16,303 58,503 <60,766> <88,255> 24,570
<9,242> 16,303 58,503 <60,766> <88,255> 24,570




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/06

---------------- CURRENT----------------~ --------------YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 11,120 o} 8,163 20,636 0 36,695
Labor Billed 600 1,080 1,980 600 1,080 2,520
Changeover Setup Billed 3,390 6,600 11,793 3,390 6,600 16,540
Stagehands Billed 12,324 30,000 39,227 13,103 30,000 49,426
Security Billed 6,917 12,000 18,838 6,917 12,000 23,504
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 3,657 7,000 13,636 3,657 7,000 17,041
Box Office Billed 387 800 968 737 800 1,355
Ticketing Service Billed 1,748 16,000 4,746 2,098 17,500 6,125
Utilities Billed 0 0 1,800 0 0 1,800
City Police Fire Billed 350 672 896 350 672 1,176
EMT Medical Billed 250 1,200 1,875 650 1,200 2,250
Cleaning Billed 4,545 7,200 6,363 4,545 7,200 10,012
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 0 294 0 220
Telephone Billed 1,100 1,600 1,800 1,900 1,600 2,100
Other Production Billed 5,608 14,600 61,579 10,339 14,600 69,901
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 51,996 98,752 173,663 69,215 100,252 240,665
Advertising Expense 11,683 0 9,346 21,129 0 38,378
Labor Wages 510 918 1,683 510 918 2,142
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 3,315 6,000 13,397 5,051 9,000 15,549
Stagehand Wages 12,364 29,308 27,993 13,192 30,508 44,943
Contracted Security Expense 5,996 9,600 19,182 8,342 11,700 25,460
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 3,068 5,600 16,712 4,756 8,100 20,004
Ticket Sellers Wages 329 0 822 626 0 1,151
Ticket Service Charge Expense 1,572 16,000 4,364 1,983 17,500 5,805
City Police Fire Expense 112 672 896 112 672 1,176
EMT Medical Expense 341 1,043 1,604 736 1,443 2,094
Contracted Cleaning Expense 2,751 6,545 12,559 4,222 9,045 14,721
Group Sales Commissions 177 0 [ 177 0 0
Allocated Telephone Expense 330 528 330 570 1,056 420
Production Expense 5,708 14,600 59,574 9,985 16,600 75,106
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 48,256 90,814 168,460 71,392 106,542 246,950

NET SERVICE INCOME 3,740 7,938 5,204 <2,177> <6,290> <6,285>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending August 31, 2006

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Family Show - - - o - -
Sporting Event 1 1 4,681 2,500 18,190 6,017
Concert 1 2 11,121 15,600 64,170 126,878
Team Home Games - - - - - -
Other 4 - 700 - 2,682 -
GRAND TOTALS 6 3 16,502 18,100 85,042 132,895
As Percentage of Overall
Family Show 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sporting Event 16.67% 33.33% 28.37% 13.81% 21.39% 4.53%
Concert 16.67% 66.67% 67.39% 86.19% 75.46% 95.47%
Team Home Games 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Other 66.67% 0.00% 4.24% 0.00% 3.15% 0.00%



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
CONTRACT RIGHTS
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY & EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TICKET SALES
TOTAL CURRENT LIAB.

FUND EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED FROM CAA
CURRENT YEAR EARNINGS
AMOUNT DUE CAA
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

TOTAL LIAB & EQUITY

2,897,562
1,752,659

124,346

4,774,566

4,774,566

405,883
269,428
2,104,973
1,667,728

4,448,012

(700,000)
92,826
(9,242)

942,970

326,554

4,774,566




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending August 31, 2006

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women

Total Accounts Receivable

34,619
218,355
12,592
886,444
387,498

183,499

29,652

1,752,659



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/06

S = - R B CURRENT---=-==-===mccocomr mc--ccemomemmomm oo o YTD-=----ccrmmmmcmramc e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 53,995 59,541 52,170 105,431 119,082 106,982
Part-Time 2,977 5,833 2,913 5,052 11,666 5,871
Wages-Trade 44,359 69,232 65,025 78,086 138,464 101,203
Sales Commissions Group Sales 1,512 0 0 1,832 0 0
Auto Allowance 594 985 727 1,188 1,970 1,304
Auto Expense 300 0 300 600 0 600
Taxes & Benefits 28,086 38,187 34,708 52,794 76,374 66,287
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <30,089> <59,837> <45,008> <45,329> <119,674> <64,941>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 101,735 113,941 110,833 199,654 227,882 217,307
Contracted Security 20,634 19,760 20,039 41,523 39,520 40,268
Contracted Cleaning 3,146 3,250 8,927 5,469 6,500 11,177
Other Contracted Services 7,932 300 1,586 10,048 600 1,800
Travel & Entertainment 1,194 858 302 3,337 1,716 1,307
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 1,250 0
Meetings & Conventions 399 350 763 399 700 763
Dues & Subscriptions 157 208 599 857 416 986
Employee Training 1,308 750 337 1,308 1,500 337
Computer Expense 4,176 5,417 6,704 10,697 10,834 11,070
pProfesgssional Fees 2,009 2,583 2,526 4,008 5,166 4,401
Marketing & Advertising 1,121 15,000 2,437 2,129 30,000 5,789
Box Office Expenses 4 0 <1l4> <534> 0 <616>
Trash Removal 699 1,500 798 2,325 3,000 1,944
Equipment Rental 1,205 500 2,512 2,810 1,000 3,487
Landscaping 0 483 0 1,124 966 0
Exterminating 0 300 438 0 600 1,056
Cleaning 2,650 150 0 2,650 300 2,650
Rental Office Equipment 0 750 0 0 1,500 0
Repairs & Maintenance 14,492 9,333 9,493 28,097 18,666 18,702
Supplies 14,639 15,758 13,114 35,625 31,516 35,402
Bank Service Charges 376 750 389 601 1,500 874
Insurance 6,861 15,179 9,312 12,127 30,358 21,551
Printing & Stationary 0 217 0 850 1,834 0
Office Supplies 571 1,000 2,126 951 2,000 3,838
Postage 1,668 1,000 1,256 2,024 2,000 2,018
Parking Expense 4,814 2,000 2,076 4,814 4,000 4,717
Telephone Long Distance 4,911 7,000 11,061 10,332 14,000 20,158
Utilities 46,919 68,400 42,337 92,826 136,800 84,546
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 20,683 25,000 25,000 40,617
Common Area Expense <2,680> <2,945> <3,251> <5,362> <5,890> <5,459>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <330> <375> <330> <570> <750> <420>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 151,375 183,301 156,218 295,465 366,602 313,065
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 253,110 297,242 267,051 495,119 594,484 530,371



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

***Summary based on F/Y 2007 Budget - Benchmarks will adjust after final audit***

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,406,043 (725,642) 680,401 490,254
Benchmark 1,267,881 (677,627) 590,254 534,919
Excess 138,162 (48,015) 90,147 (44,665)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,980,275 4,562,045 9,542,320 9,000,895
Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384
Revenue Excess 380,275 562,045 942,320 743,511
Incentive Fee ** 257,696 -
Total SMG Management Fee 150,000 150,000 557,696 490,400

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL ARENA

FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE & COMMISSIONS

FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2006

MONTH

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total F&B Revenue to Arena

YEAR TO DATE

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total F&B Revenue to Arena

MONTHLY EVENTS - PER CAP COMPARISON

American Idol

August August August
Actual Budget Prior Year
37,641 76,000 126,746
(17,942) (35,720) (64,024)
19,699 40,280 62,722
18,027 12,000 47,723
(14,512) (9,660) (39,428)
3,515 2,340 8,295
23,214 42,620 71,017
YTD 2007 YTD 2007 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
53,395 83,500 151,881
(25,737) (39,245) (76,776)
27,658 44,255 75,105
24,716 18,000 50,881
(19,896) (14,490) (42,047)
4,820 3,510 8,834
32,478 47,765 83,939
Previous Visit Current Year Percentage Change
2.39 3.38 41.42%

Item V.b.1.



Item V.b.ii.

3:35 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
09/15/06 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2006
Aug 31, 06
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG 4,029,394.10
1050 - Operations - Cash 1,480,657.41
Total Checking/Savings 5,510,051.51
Accounts Receivable
1201 - *Accounts Receivable 90,124.05
Total Accounts Receivable 90,124.05

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating

18,231,869.30

1200 - Accounts Receivable 914,927.17
1300 - Prepaid Expenses 177,272.29
1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable -4,400,000.07
Total Other Current Assets 14,924,068.69
Total Current Assets 20,524,244.25
Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Original Cost 322,431.00
Total Buildings & Structures 322,431.00
Equip
Depreciation -334,417.81
Original Cost 750,476.88
Total Equip 416,059.07
Vehicles 23,470.00
Total Fixed Assets 761,960.07

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

21,286,204.32

2000 - Accounts Payable 101,169.29

2005 - Accounts payable - SMG 606,513.17

Total Accounts Payable 707,682.46
Other Current Liabilities

2200 - Accrued Expenses 671,392.61

2210 - Advance Ticket Sales 619,668.73

2220 - Advance deposits 275,443.00

2500 - Deferred facility income 601,038.74

Total Other Current Liabilities 2,167,543.08

Total Current Liabilities 2,875,225.54

Total Liabilities 2,875,225.54

Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity 37,035,584.45

3900 - Retained Earnings -18,488,440.05

Net Income -136,165.62

Total Equity 18,410,978.78

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 21,286,204.32




1:24 PM

09/15/06 Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 08/31/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 568,060.87
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 27 items
Bill Pmt -Check  07/18/2006 6418 SERAPID, INC. N -263,247.30  -263,247.30
Bill Pmt -Check  07/28/2006 6424  Priority Health N -370.42 -263,617.72
Bill Pmt -Check  07/28/2006 6422 ICMA Reliremenl Corporation - 401A ¥ -260.96 -263,878.68
Bill Pmt -Check  07/28/2006 6421 Grand Rapids Cily Treasurer ’ N -3,326.72  -267,205.40
Bill Pmt -Check  07/28/2006 6420  Dickinson Wright PLLC N -4,712.28 -271,917.68
Bill Pm{ -Check  07/28/2006 6423 ICMA Relirement Comporalion - 457 N -50.00 -271,967.68
Check 08/04/2006 10138 Susan M. Waddell v -136.07  -272,102.75
Check 08/04/2006 10137 Susan M. Waddell v -1,49331  -273,586.06
Check 08/04/2006 Service Charge D) -459.34  -274,055.40
Check 08/04/2006 10138 Susan M. Waddell Correct overwithholding of employee 401(a) 8/3 -11.07 -274,066.47
Check 08/04/2006 10137 Susan M. Waddeli ) -964.40 -275,030.87
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6437 Wamer Norcross & Judd LLP ) -285.15 -275,316.02
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6436  Schindler Elevator Corporation 4 -4,288.00 -279,604.02
Bill Pml -Check  08/14/2006 6435 Rick L. Van Sweden DDS PC < -385.20 -279,989.22
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6434 Progressive AE i -3,052.56 -283,941.78
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6433 Kent Counl Dept of Public Works N -14,828.32  -298,770.10
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6432  Jon McDonald N -1,500.00 -300,270.10
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6431 ICMA Retirement Corporation - 457 ) -50.00 -300,320.10
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6430 ICMA Retirement Corporation - 401A ~ -292.28 -300,612.38
Bill Pmi -Check  08/14/2006 6429 Grand Rapids Cily Treasurer J -14,95467 -315,567.05
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6428 DTE Energy N -415.28 -315,982.33
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6427 Consumers Energy V4 -67,175.18  -383,157.51
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6425 Andy J. Egan Company, Inc. N -77,500.00 -460,657.51
Bill Pmt -Check  08/14/2006 6426 BDO Seidman, LLP < -6,000.00 -466,657.51
Check 08/18/2006 10139 Susan M. Waddell < -1,490.70  -468,148.21
Check 08/18/2006 10139 Susan M. Waddell < -826.11 -468,974.32
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6451 Progressive AE ) -1,701.44 470,675.76
Tolal Checks and Payments -470,675.76  -470,675.76
Deposits and Credits - 67 items
Deposit 07/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ~ 110.00 110.00
Deposit 07/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 53.00 163.00
Deposit 08/01/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue D) 50.00 213.00
Deposit 08/01/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 159.00 372.00
Deposit 08/02/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 45.50 417.50
Deposil 08/02/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 56.50 474.00
Deposit 08/03/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ) 28.00 502.00
Deposit 08/03/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ) 25.00 527.00
Deposil 08/04/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 44.50 571.50
Deposit 08/04/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ~ 34.50 606.00
Deposit 08/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue R 58.50 664.50
Deposit 08/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenus v 71.50 736.00
Deposil 08/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ¥ 84.50 820.50
Deposit 08/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 78.00 898.50
Deposil 08/07/2006 DeVos Place parking revenus ~ 300.50 1,199.00
Deposit 08/07/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 59.00 1,258.00
Deposit 08/08/2006 DeVos Place pariing revenue + 33.00 1,291.00
Deposit 08/08/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue R 19.00 1,310.00
Deposil 08/08/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 60.00 1,370.00
Deposit 08/09/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ) 20.00 1,390.00
Deposit 08/09/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 193.50 1,583.50
Deposil 08/09/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ~ 12.00 1,595.50
Deposil 08/09/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ¥ 57.50 1,653.00
Deposit 08/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue + 5.00 1,658.00
Deposit 08/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 158.00 1,816.00
Deposit 08/10/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 219.00 2,035.00
Deposit 08/11/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ) 52.00 2,087.00
Deposit 08/11/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 99.00 2,186.00
Deposit 08/11/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 57.00 2,243.00
Deposit 08/12/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ~ 195.00 2,438.00



1:24 PM

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/15/06
Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 08/31/2006
Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance
Deposit 08/12/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 221.00 2,659.00
Deposit 08/14/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 29.00 2,688.00
Deposit 08/14/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 37.00 2,725.00
Deposit 08/14/2006 Interest N 1,075.57 3,800.57
Deposit 08/15/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 97.00 3,897.57
Deposit 08/15/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue D) 41.00 3,938.57
Deposil 08/15/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue D) 282.00 4,220.57
Deposit 08/16/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 104.50 4,325.07
Deposit 08/16/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 133.00 4,458.07
Deposit 08/17/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue D) 56.00 4,514.07
Deposit 08/17/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 47.50 4,561.57
Deposit 08/18/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue + 18.00 4,579.57
Deposil 08/18/2006 DsVos Place parking revenue v 75.00 4,654.57
Deposit 08/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ) 60.00 4,714.57
Deposit 08/21/2006 DeVos Place parking fevenue v 46.00 4,760.57
Deposit 08/21/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 53.50 4,814.07
Deposit 08/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 77.00 4,891.07
Deposit 08/22/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ¥ 80.00 4,971.07
Deposit 08/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 45.00 5,016.07
Deposit 08/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 79.00 5,095.07
Deposit 08/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 76.00 5,171.07
Deposit 08/23/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 40.50 5,211.57
Deposit 08/24/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue N 38.00 5,249.57
Deposit 08/24/2006 DeVos Place parking revenus N 39.00 6,288.57
Deposit 08/25/2006 Van Andel Arena excess cash: July 2006 #1 N 500,000.00  505,288.57
Deposit 08/25/2006 DeVos Place parking revenus ) 22,00 505,310.57
Deposil 08/25/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue ) 20.00 505,330.57
Deposit 08/28/2006 Van Andel Arena excess cash: July 2006 #2 N 200,000.00  705,330.57
Deposil 08/28/2006 DeVos Place excess cash: July 2006 #1 N 250,000.00  955,330.57
Deposil 08/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 2200 955,352.57
Deposit 08/28/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 500 955,357.57
Deposit 08/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 19.00 955,376.57
Deposit 08/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue v 50.00 955,426.57
Deposit 08/29/2006 DeVos Place excess cash: July 2006 #2 ) 500,000.00 1,455,426.57
Deposit 08/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue D) 13.00 1,455,439.57
Deposil 08/30/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue < 28.00 1,455,467.57
Tolal Deposits and Credils 1,455,467.57 1,455467.57
Tolal Cleared Transaclions 984,791.81 984,791.81
Cleared Balance 2,241.535.76 1,552,852.88
Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 14 items
Bill Pmt -Check  04/28/2005 6112  Priority Health -398.73 -398.73
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6443 Gordon Food Service, Inc. -7,892.91 -8,291.64
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6444 Grand Rapids Cily Treasurer -847.00 -9,138.64
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6445 ICMA Retirement Corporation - 401A -271.40 -9,410.04
Bill Pml -Check  08/28/2006 6450  Priorily Health -370.42 -9,780.46
Bill Pml -Check  08/28/2006 6449 Panda Promotional Products -3,746.84 -13,527.30
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6448 Nye Uniform -7,001.81 -20,529.11
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6447  Illinois Mulual -1,688.00 -22,218.11
Bili Pml -Check  08/28/2006 6442 Feyen-Zylsira Inc -7,390.00 -29,608.11
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6441 DTE Energy -451.81 -30,069.92
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6446 ICMA Relirement Corporation - 457 -50.00 -30,109.92
Bill Pmi -Check  08/28/2006 6438  Cily of Grand Rapids-Risk Management -4,746.86 -34,856.78
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6439 Consumers Energy -35,727.12 -70,583.90
Bill Pmt -Check  08/28/2006 6440 Dickinson Wright PLLC -1,668.37 -72,252.27
Total Checks and Payments -72,28227  -72.252.27

Deposits and Credits - 2 items

Deposit 08/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 23.00 23.00
Deposit 08/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 34.00 57.00




1:24 PM

08115106 Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 08/31/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance
Total Deposits and Credils 57.00 57.00
Total Uncleared Transaclions -72,195.27 -72,195.27
Register Balance as of 08/31/2006 2,169,340.49 1,480,657.41
New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 18 items
Bilt Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6464 Wenger -21,148.00 -21,148.00
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6463 The Mail Order Shoppe -62.91 -21,210.91
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6461 Rapid Hot Coffee Service -28.98 -21,239.89
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6460 McConomy Properties LLC -1,760.00 -22,989.89
Bill Pmit -Check  09/01/2006 6459 Kent Count Dept of Public Works -12,345.30 -35,335.19
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6458 Jackson National Life Ins. Company -287.00 -35,622.19
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6457 ICMA Relirement Corporation - 457 -50.00 -35,672.19
8ill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6456 ICMA Retirement Corporation - 401A -271.40 -35,943.59
Bili Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6455 Grand Rapids Cily Treasurer -8,296.24 -44,239.83
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6454 Dickinson Wrighl PLLC -6,998.42 -51,238.25
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6453 Consumers Energy -35,399.56 -86,637.81
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6452 BDO Seidman, LLP -4,250.00 -80,887.81
Check 09/01/2006 10140 Susan M. Waddell -1,490.70 -92,378.51
Check 09/01/2006 10140 Susan M. Waddell -826.11 -93,204.62
Bill Pmt -Check  09/01/2006 6462  Schindler Elevator Corporation -48,080.00 -141,284.62
Transfer 09/13/2006 Funds Transfer -850,000.00 -991,284.62
Check 09/15/2006 10141 Susan M. Waddell -931.05  -992,215.67
Check 09/15/2006 10141 Susan M. Waddell -1,490.70  -993,706.37
Total Checks and Payments -993,706.37  -993,706.37
Deposits and Credits - 24 fems
Deposit 09/01/2006 DeVos Place pariking revenue 31.00 31.00
Deposit 09/01/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue 20.00 51.00
Deposit 09/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 28,00 79.00
Deposil 09/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 54.00 133.00
Deposit 09/06/2006 DeVos Place pariing revenue 259.00 392.00
Deposit 09/06/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 63.00 445.00
Deposit 09/07/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 49.00 494.00
Deposil 09/07/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 282.00 776.00
Deposil 09/07/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 160.00 936.00
Deposit 09/08/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 156.00 1,092.00
Deposit 09/08/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 251.00 1,343.00
Deposit 09/08/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 108.00 1,451.00
Deposit 09/08/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 304.00 1,755.00
Deposil 09/09/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 754.00 2,509.00
Deposit 09/05/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 143.00 2,652.00
Deposit 09/09/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 102.50 2,754.50
Deposil 09/11/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 967.50 3,722.00
Deposit 09/11/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 217.00 3,939.00
Deposit 09/11/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 380.00 4,319.00
Deposit 09/11/2006 Premium Retumn 5,437.00 9,756.00
Deposit 09/12/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 542.00 10,298.00
Deposit 09/12/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 640.00 10,938.00
Deposil 09/12/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 220.50 11,1568.50
Deposil 09/12/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue 1,224.00 12,382.50
Total Deposits and Credits 12,382.50 12,382.50
Tolal New Transaclions -981,323.87  -981,323.87
1,188,016.62 499,333.54

Ending Balance




12:52 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/15/06 Reconciliation Detail
1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 08/1/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 18,860,354.43
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 1 item

Transfer 7/18/2006 - Funds Transfer X . -700,000.00 -700,000.00
Total Checks and Payments -700,000.00 -700,000.00
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 71172006 Interest X 71,614.87 71,514.87
Total Deposits and Credits ' 71,514.87 71,514.87

Total Cleared Transactions -628,485.13 -628,485.13

Cleared Balance -628,485.13 18,231,869.30

Register Balance as of 07/31/2006 -628,485.13 18,231,869.30

New Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Transfer 9/13/2006 Funds Transfer 850,000.00 850,000.00
Total Deposits and Credits 850,000.00 850,000.00

Total New Transactions 850,000.00 850,000.00
Ending Balance 221,514.87 19,081,869.30




ZOTIUY
zZoTauy

Xd QELS0d

-

LZ O0%L'ST9 8T
€T°58% ‘829~
00°000°00L-

L8 FPIS'TL

EE:E€0°80 90/¥%1/80 0€£°698'1€2°'81
8Z:8%:TT 90/12/L0O 0€°698'1€6'81

Qcto) £

a3aLsod IWIL

€V $SE€°098°8T
IDNYIVE

ET6ET TCC

R do
Dl <

FONYTIVE AIIVA FOVIIAY

HA00 ddAL Ad dYOdA

00°000°00L
L8 9IS TIL

SNOILONQIEA SNOILIQAQY

T0L0 :YIGWAN ONILVYIJO- YYD
90/T€/L0 HONOYHI 90/T0/LO

YADAIT aNAJ ¢ SHIYIS

LNEY 40 ALNONOO

00°000‘00L L8 %TS'TL
00°000°00L T
0 L8 TS TL
INNOWY ON INOOWY
........... SNOILONQEQ---- =-=-=--=-~--

aNnd

TYLOL

S€
€

ddAL

L8ZZOAML
LNIdd¥

Fodnos

SE 90/8T/L0O
€ 90/10/L0
HdXL qiva

85:%0 90/91/80

NOY
fLd¥T



4:26 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/15/06 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through August 2006
Jul - Aug 06
Income
4500 - Interest on Investments 73,842.85
4540 - Land Lease 46,088.00
4545 - Parking Revenues 85,679.50
Total Income 205,610.35
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 10,462.07
6040 - Legal Services 6,998.42
Total 6000 - Professional Services 17,460.49
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00
6068 - Parking Management 71,745.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 4,746.86
6110 - Meeting Expense 28.98
6120 - Supplies 627.25
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 5,403.09
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 84,336.95
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 102,574.74
6310 - Natural Gas 867.09
6320 - Steam 27,173.62
6340 - Water & Sewer 17,371.05
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 147,986.50
8000 - Personat Services
8001 - Employee Wages 9,046.60
8030 - Employee Benefits 4,297.34
Total 8000 - Personal Services 13,343.94
Total Expense 341,775.97
Net Income -136,165.62




4:27 PM
09/15/08

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Profit & Loss by Fund

Accrual Basis

July through August 2006

Admin & Capital Replacement
(Operations)

Total Operations

TOTAL

Income
4500
4540
4545

+ Interest on Investments
* Land Lease
: Parking Revenues

73,842.85
46,088.00
85,679.50

73,842.85
46,088.00
85,679.50

73,842.85
46,088.00
85,679.50

Total Income

Expense
8000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
8040 - Legal Services

10,462.07
6,998.42

Total 6000 - Professional Services

8080 - Other Contractual Services

6068 - Parking Management

6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
8030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

4,746.86
28.98
627.25

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
8300 - Utilitles Expense

8301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

8320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

102,574.74
867.09
27,173.62
17,371.05

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

9,046.60
4,297.34

Total 8000 - Personal Services

205,610.35

17,460.49

1,500.00
71,745.00

5,403.09
84,336.95

147,986.50

13,343.94

205,610.35

10,462.07
6,998.42

17,460.49

1,500.00
71,745.00

4,746.86
28.98
627.25

5,403.09
84,336.95

102,574.74
867.09
27,173.62
17,371.056

147,986.50

9,046.60
4,297.34

13,343.94

205,610.35

10,462.07
6,998.42

17,460.49
1,500.00
71,745.00

4,746.86
28.98
627.25

5,403.09
84,336.95

102,574.74
867.09
27,173.62
17,371.05

147,986.50

9,046.60
4,297.34

13,343.94

Total Expense

Net Income

-136,165.62

344,776.97

341,775.97
-136,165.62

341,775.97

-136,165.62




4:39 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/15/06
Accrual Basis

Income
4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
8000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

8060 - Other Contractual Services

8065 - Pedestrian Safety

6068 - Parking Management

6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 8100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
8300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8500 - DID Assessment

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services
Total Expense

Net Income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July through August 2006

Jul - Aug 08 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
73,842.85 130,834.00 -56,991.15 56.4%
46,088.00 25,766.00 20,322.00 178.9%
85,879.50 122,428.00 -36,748.50 70.0%

0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

205,610.35 281,528.00 -75,917.65 73.0%
10,462.07 4,334.00 6,128.07 241.4%
6,998.42 5,000.00 1,998.42 140.0%

17,460.49 9,334.00 8,126.49 187.1%

1,500.00 10,000.00 -8,500.00 16.0%

0.00 13,334.00 -13,334.00 0.0%

71,745.00 56,206.00 15,539.00 127.6%
4,746.86 3,334.00 1,412.86 142.4%
28.98 666.00 -637.02 4.4%
627.25 1,666.00 -1,038.75 37.7%

5,403.09 5,666.00 -262.91 95.4%

84,336.95 181,000.00 -96,663.05 46.6%
102,574.74 199,000.00 -96,425.26 51.5%

867.09 3,000.00 -2,132.91 28.9%
27,173.62 184,916.00 -157,742.38 14.7%
17,371.05 2,064.00 15,307.05 841.6%

147,986.50 388,980.00 -240,993.50 38.0%
0.00 8,276.00 -8,276.00 0.0%
9,046.60 9,800.00 -753.40 92.3%
4,297.34 3,612.00 785.34 122.4%
13,343.94 13,312.00 31.94 100.2%
341,775.97 686,108.00 -344,332.03 49.8%
-136,165.62 ~404,580.00 268,414.38 33.7%




4:35PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

09/15/06 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis July through August 2006
Jul-Aug 06  Jul - Aug 05 $ Change % Change
Income
4500 - Interest on Investments 73,842.85 6§7,572.16 16,270.69 28.3%
4540 - Land Lease 46,088.00 23,044.00 23,044.00 100.0%
4545 - Parking Revenues 85,679.50 27,282.25 58,397.25 214.1%
4550 - Miscellianeous Revenue 0.00 23,400.00 -23,400.00 -100.0%
Total Income 205,610.35 131,298.41 74,311.94 56.6%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services 17,460.49 414.94 17,045.55 4,108.0%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 100.0%
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6068 - Parking Management 71,745.00 19,251.00 52,494.00 272.7%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 5,403.09 4,275.18 1,127.91 26.4%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 0.00 5636.25 -536.25 -100.0%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 84,336.95 0.00 84,336.95 100.0%
6300 - Utilities Expense 147,986.50 117,692.20 30,294.30 25.7%
8000 - Personal Services 13,343.94 761.72 12,582.22 1,6561.8%
Total Expense 341,775.97 142,931.29 198,844.68 139.1%
Net Income -136,165.62 -11,632.88 -124,532.74 -1,070.5%

-10 -



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item VI
(Revised)
DATE EVENT EC { MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Fri, Sep 22 Professional Bull Riders GC | TODD | Arena 3:00 AM Load-in
8:00 PM Performance
Army AC Banquet A/B | 9A-6:30P Banquet
Professional Bull Riders AC Banquet C/D | 6:30A-9P Crew catering
Sat, Sep 23 Professional Bull Riders GC | IM Arena 8:00 PM Performance
Sun, Sep 24 Available
Mon, Sep 25 | Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 10:00 AM Animal compound set-up/Pre-rig
6:00 PM Train arrival (approximate)
9:00 PM Animal walk (approx) NOT FOR
PUBLIC KNOWLEDGE
Tue, Sep 26 Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 6:00 AM Load-in
Wed, Sep 27 | Ringling Bros. Circus AH | RICH Arena 11:00 AM Continued load-in
4:00 PM Pyro test
6:00 PM Doors
7P-8P Performance #1 — 1* half
8P-8:15P Intermission
8:15P-9:10P Performance #1 — 2 half
Thur, Sep 28 | Ringling Bros. Circus GC | STEVE | Arena 1P-3P Ringling promoter event
6:00 PM Doors
7P-8P Performance #2 -~ 1* half
8P-8:15P Intermission
8:15P-9:10P Performance #2 — 2™ half
Fri, Sep 29 Ringling Bros. Circus AH | LYNNE | Arena 6:00 PM Doors
7P-8P Performance #3 — 1* half
8P-8:15P Intermission
8:15P-9:10P Performance #3 — 2" half
Sat, Sep 30 Ringling Bros. Circus GC | TODD | Arena 10:30 AM Doors
11:30A-12:30P | Performance #4 — 1* half
12:30P-12:45P | Intermission
12:45P-1P Performance #4 — 2™ half
2:30PM Doors
3:30P-4:30P Performance #5 — 1*' half
4:30P-4:45P Intermission
4:45P-5:30P Performance #5 — 2™ half
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-8:30P Performance #6 — 1* half
8:30P-8:45P Intermission
8:45P-9:30P Performance #6 — 2" half
Sun, Oct 1 Ringling Bros. Circus AH Arena 1:00 PM Doors
2P-3P Performance #7 — 1* half
3P-3:15P Intermission
3:15P-4P Performance #7 — 2" half
4:00 PM Load-out
Mon, Oct 2 Available
Tue, Oct 3 SMG Arena 8A-5P Making ice
Wed, Oct 4 SMG Arena 8A-5P Ice maintenance
Thur, Oct § SMG Arena 8A-5P Ice maintenance
Fri, Oct 6 Available
Sat, Oct 7 SMG AH Arena 10A-6P Open House
Sun, Oct 8 10™ Anniv Celebration on Ice GC Arena 3:00 PM Performance
Mon, Oct 9 Available
Tue, Oct 10 Available
Wed, Oct 11 | Available
Thur, Oct 12 | Available




Fri, Oct 13 Available
Sat, Oct 14 Griffins vs Omaha AH Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Griffins season home opener
Sun, Oct 15 Available
Mon, Oct 16 | Available
Tue, Oct 17 Available
Wed, Oct 18 Pistons vs Timber Wolves GC Arena 6:00 PM Doors
7:00 PM Basketball game
Thur, Oct 19 | MI Assn of Non-Public Schools AH Arena 8A-12P Conference
Fri, Oct 20 MI Assn of Non-Public Schools AH Arena 8A-12P Conference
Griffins vs Houston GC Arena 6:00 PM Doors
8P-10:30P Hockey game
Sat, Oct 21 Griffins vs Houston GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Griffins season home opener
Sun, Oct 22 Available




90/12/6

d-v wooled = -V 1T1vd

[TeH 2oueutiofdd soAdd = Ad

Swooy Sunssy 20IuoI =J-¥ NOW
A-V NOOI2AQ 19ATY = -V OY

eaIy A19][eD pueln) =DHH

H-V swooy Sunsspy J00ooA0 =H-V O

I IV sSiieHMqUxg = D~V HA J-V swooy Sunasjy A13([en pueld = J-V O
LNO-IAON JOLIFGIHXT Wd00:8 — INd00:9 av 1Ivd
Wd00-S — NSt €
NdS1:-¢ —Nd00:T
S1NOAVIId WVSLTI-IAV00:01 IV OD
ONNOTYELNINOD 4909
YTAVEIS SLONATHA WdOE: I-INVSH 1T
SY00d WVOE11
SYTAVILS ALONATA WV0L:6 -INV00°8 ad1ivd
S37Zrdd Yood Wd00:9 — Nd00:S
WdSH€ —NdS1:€
Wd00:T — NdOE- T
WVSHTI-INVST:11
WV00-01-INV0E:6
SYNOH OdXd WV00:8-INV0¢E:L qav TIvd FONTIHANOD
00L ‘HONVANILLY "LSd | A NHdO NOLLVILSIOTT WVO00:L JARIHS NVOIHOIA TVOANNY 4,81 17 1d9S "'SINHL
0ST -HONVANILLY "LSq | [N ONILLITN dv — V6 4095 JO:INI
FONVINIOIITd WdOI1-INd0t:L
TVSIVIHTA WdS1:9-INdOE:T ANOL ISNOH
AV NI SAON VS Ad HHL NAOJ NIONRNE -SJONHL FHL
AV TVSIVIHTA WdOE-TI-NVOL TIVH TVLIOTA 1 8dOd -OSAD
1NO JAON Wd00:L-INdST¥
ONILIIN WdST:H-AV00:6
00 ‘HONVANHALLY 'LS3 | (L | NOLLVILSIONY / dNLFS 137D WV00:6-INV00:L a-011vd SYIN
dNLIs VI WV00:TT-INd00-L a-oTIvd
NOILLJIDTA Nd00:6-Nd00:S
NAdO SLIgIHXd Wd00:6-WNd00:¥ g-v T1ivd
SdOHSXOM NdO00-S-INdS 1Tt g-v o
HONNOT L3N, AILNINOD Nd00-:6-INd00-T1 409
dN1FS LIgIHXd Wd00:+-INd00:-T1 g-v T1vd
HONNT @axod WdO00-ZI-INVOE: 11 g-v Od HONTIHINOD
00L ‘HONVANFLLY "Lsd | [N dN1LIS ? TVARY LNIITO A00:ZI-INV00:6 AdE0T VIHDOIS MN JYHS NVOIHOIN TVINNY ., 81
LNO-avO7T YOLIdIHXH WV00-Z1-INd00:¥ OodX3 T1Vvd
NHdO MOHS 0dXd Wd00:-INV00:11 J HH NOILVIOOSSY HSYAAVD LSIMAIN 0C 1ddS 'dam
JONTYIINOD
14 dN 138 OVE NOILLVILSIOTY Wd00:8-INd00:¥ VOO WIHS NVOIHOIN TVANNYV 81
1No avol Wd00-01-Nd00-8
NadO MOHS Nd00-8-INd00:T ALYVd
0001 ‘HONVANALLY 1S3 | L NI avO1 Wd00:T-INV00:L g-v T1ivd AVAI'TOH NVOIHOIN 1S3M adv
L NI JAONW Wd00:L-INd00:€ a-oT11vd SYIN
N340 MOHS 0dXd WdO00:S-INV00:11 OdX3 TIvd
NI-GVOT1 JOLIGIHXT AVOE:01-AV:8 O H3 NOILVIOOSSY HSVMYVD LSIMAIN 61 1d4S SN |

NOILOMILSNOD/SNOLLVIIJO

NOILLONNA

JINIAT JLVA

9007 — ATAdIM
HIOVIESOAECA



90/12/6 Swooy 3undIN 0O =0-V NOW
47V JOO[12AQ I8ARY = 4-V OY

Q- wooxreg = @-V TIve eIy A13[[eD puelp = Do
[[eH {duenlIojIod SOA2(d = Ad H-V suooy Mﬂﬁoog JOOo[IdAQ =H-V O
z O-V SIeH HqMxd = D-V HY -V Swooy Sunesj AI9[[eD pueln = 4-v O
NOILLVILSIONA Wd00:S-INV00-8 A99d0OT1 VIHOO3S NOILNIANOO
N dN L3S LdVIDLIY Nd00:S — INV(00-8 a-v 1ivd TYNNNV-SIOLTVIY 40 NSSV IN
1NO0 FAON Nd8-NdS
AV HONVINRIOLIAd NdS-INdE Ad 1 SdOd -OSYD
ALdvd WV00:1-INd00:6 AJFTIVO ANVID
NOO0Y TIAON AV00: I-INd00 S 4 AYITIVO ANVID
008-00§ ‘HONJANALLY 1S3 dNLES TVYNOLLIAQV QddIA 3ATNOHS DI

et

L Latlitalalhirdl] AR

FONVINIOIIId Wd01-Nd8
AV NOLLIANV Wd00:S-INV00:6 Ad 1 §d0d -OSYD
LNOIAON WdJ00:8 — INd00-
MOHS NOIHSVAd Wd00-T
MOHS NOIHSVd WV00:11
MOHS Wd00:v — INV00:01
[N | TVARRIV YOLIFIHXH /LNAI'1D V00:6 vV HE MOHS Tvanig TIvid
008-00S ‘HONVANILLY 'LSq | (N dN 138 / TVARIYV INJITO d00-01-Nd00:S AJITIVO ANVID OIAIA JFATNOHS DId
WVIOO0YUd % HONN'T Nd00:Z-INd00:T1 a1ivd
NMOQ dVdL JOLIAIHXE Wd00-T-INd00:T1
NAdO SLIgIHXd Wd00:T1-INV00:6 g711vd
HWODTIM % LSVDIVIIE V00:6-NVO0EL aTivd

QOCENVONALLY LSS LN L NI OVOITHOLIEIHXS | WVOE:LNV009 | S U 4\ W —— i £ LJHS LVS

HONVINIOANEd |
S\ NOLLIGNV N00:S-NV00:6 Ad 1SdOd -OS¥D
MOHS NOIHSV4 Wd00-L

mous | Wd00:6 —INd00:S
NI-FAON Nd00:€— NV00:8

N TYARRIV INAITD VOE:L vV He MOHS Tvandd T1v4
sinoseug wdpg:Q] —wes1:g -V D
SWooy JoWmuE/ndwio)) wdpo:Z1 —ureo:L 49
uolssag wdgQ:Z| - wresy:ol
uoissag WeQQ:6 - ureQg:g as>1ivd
Isgpyeag WeQg:g — uregg:, A€€0T VIHOOES
uoIssag We():§ — We:L ajsTivd AONTIFANOD
00L *IONVANALLY 183 | [ suodQ uoyensiSay WeQ0:L JAIHS NVOIHOIN TVNNY 4,81
NOISSAS TVIANTO INd00:S-INV0€:8
06 ‘IONVANALLY "1S9 { O¥ | LSVAIVIIL % NOILVILSION] NVO0E:L ad-v NOW STOOLSTANI
dNL3s odxd W00V aTive

S T

] =00 AL QONLLDRMVILOLLOVIVD L 22 LJSS NI

N9 |

IVSYVAHTI
AV NI JAON Wd1-NV8 Ad 1 §d0Od -OS¥O
NOISSIS TVIINTD Nd00:s-NVOE:8
06 ‘HONVANALLY "1S3 | O¥ | LSV-DIVIYE % NOLLVILSIOFTA NVOE:L d-v NOW STOOLSIANI
ga0d
JHL LV MOTIO4 OL YINNIA

9007 — ATdIM
HOVIESOASCA



90/12/6 Swooy 3unasjy 200N =0-V NOW
-V JOO[13AQ 12AT] = -V Od
-V woonieg = -V 1Ivd vaIy A13[[eD puel) =HD
[[eH 20oUBULIONdd SOA] = Ad H-V swooy Sunss Joo[1AQ = H-V O
€ OV SIlEH 1qxg = O-V HA J-V swooy 3unasy A1a[[en puein = -V D
ONILIIN wdo:¢-NV00:L JT1vd HOIL-TH INNINOS — ONILIRIVIA df
LNIAT NJOE'9-Nd00:T
NOLLVYLSIDTY WNd00:Z-NdOE: [
TVSIVIHA WVOE: 11-INV00:01 YANNIA NOLLINDODTY
L TVARY LNAI1D NV00:8 g-v 11ve GIAQTdNE HITVIH WNYLIIdS

il

_JVO'O-VHE |

MOHS G004 FOIANIS G004 NOTIOD

WANNIA NOLLINOOOTY |

0€ Ld3S LVS

L NI @VOT NOLLONAO¥d NA00:S-INd00: 1 g-v 171ve FIAOTING HLITVEH WNA103dS
3V FONVINIOINAd dOE:01-d8 Ad vVav-old
NOILVDOANOD

0SL ‘AONVANALLY "1S3 HONNT W00:9-WV00'8 avT1ve | ALISYIAINN LTHOINIAVA 67 LdSS T4

FONVNIOIIAd dO1-dOE:L

3V FONVINIO-RIEd d0E:4-dT AQ Vav-olg
NOILVJOANOD

o dn 14s Nd00:9- INV00:8 a-4 11ve ALISYFAINN LIOINIAVA 87 1ddS "SYNHL
MV FONVINIOIAd d01-dOE:L Ad VaIv-olg
NOAPERE PUNg-0ld V TIveE HLMOUO

WANNIG | Wd6s:11-Wd00:T1 v T1ve FLVIOJNOD YOI NOILVIDOSSY L7 1435 Q3M_

FONVINIOTIAA |

" dOI-dOE:L |

SIVSIVIHTY adglr
AV NI FAON adgl Ad varv-oid
NMOQ IVIL JOLIFIHXT Wd00:6-INd00-9 g-v 1Ivd
NOISSIS WOOI@IvVOod
SNOISSIS I-vOod
HONNT WdO0E: 1-INd00:T1
NH4O SLIgIHXd Wd00:9-INV00-01 g-v 11vd NOILLNFANOD
008 ‘HONVANILLY "Lsd | [N NOLLVILSIOTH JNd00:S-INVOE:L Agd07 VIHODO3S TVOANNV-SHOLTVEI 4O NSSV I

00S ‘FONVANZLLV "1S9 LIgIHXd Wd9 — NV9 J Hi MOHS 004 ‘0D NIQITT NVA 97 1Ld9S 'SINL
NOILdFOTY FNOITIM Wd00:6-INd00:L g-v 1T1vd
ATIWISSY ANVIO Wd00:L-INd0¢E:S a-dT1ivd
dN 138 JOLIIHXH Wd00:+-INV00:6 g-v 11vd NOILNJANOD
008 ‘HONVANILLY LS | A NOLLVILSIOTI Add01 VIHDOdS TVANNY — SYOLTVIY 4O NSSV TN
N ONILITINW NdS-NdOE ¢ v Ood WVIL AJOSIAGY LIV — 4D 40 ALID
NI HAOW agl
AV dRILS 3SNOH adl Ad vdaiv-old
[14) NMO@IVIL NV00:$-INV00- 1 wung-ald O-V HI OFdIA JIAINOHS DId
0] LIgIHXH NdS — INV6 D H3 MOHS 004 "0D NITATT NVA ST LdIS 'NOW

9007 — ATAddM
HIOVIEFSOARC]




90/12/6 swooy FuNIN 20O =0-V NOW
-V JOO[LAQ 1oATY = -V O
-V woodfed = -V TIvVd eaIy A1s[[en pueln =DH
[[eH 2oueurIoj1ad soA3d = Ad H-V swooy Sunasy Joo[1sa0 = H-V O
v OV SIlEH Mquuxyd = O-V HA J-V swooy 3unasy A13[[en puein = -V O
390
ONLLITN a-v 1Ive
DNILIIW €V Ox
oY LIFIHXE W6~ NV 1ung-21d TIVE 1INONUd
b2 NMOQ ¥VEL |  Wd00:ZI-WV00:8 OVHE | MOHS @0O0d JIA¥ES 40O NOTYOO 9100 T4
¥IAVIL
ONLLITN NJO0:L-NV 008 d-v NOW AVLS ~ NOLLYONAQT ASNLIHM
TVSIVIHTI d01-dOE:L
AV TVSAVIHTY d9-dOE:€ Ad 11 TVOISSV10-OS¥D
N ONLLIIN wdpo:g -~ weg:g 49 0¥ INSAT YIWOLSND ODYVH STIAM
dn 13s &V 0¥
dn 13s 1ung-a1d TIVE
ol dn 13§ Wd6 ~ V8 a-v 1ive 1INOUd
SINOO0Y LNONVEYd HVO
SINOOY LNOMVEYE VO
NOILVILSION 1ung-aid O-v HE
N LISTHXS wdoo:g — weo:y OVHE | MOHS 4004 DIANES 00 NOTI0D § 10O 'S¥NHL
TVSIVAHTE d01-d0g:L
TVSYVEHTY 49-do€:€
v NI SAOW d1-v8 Ad 11 TVOISSVI0-0S¥D
SWOOY LNOMVEIIE HV O
SIWOO0Y LNOMVIIE 4V O
NOILVALSIONY 1ung-31d O-V HE
i LISTHXS wdgo:g — wego:y OVHE | MOHS A00d FOIA¥ES A00S NOQIO0D 100 'aam
LNOFAON |  ANVOE:Z-WdOE01
JONVINMOIIEd |  WdOE:01 ~ Nd00:8
AV NI SAOW WS- Nd1 Ad SIWVINA ¥FH 30 NVIA FHL
DNILITW a-v 11ve
dn 1das HVO
dn 19s 4vO
NOLLVILSIOTA wuy-a1d OV H
W dn 188 wdg:g ~ Wwego:s OVHE | MOHS dOO0d DIA¥ES 004 NOQUO9D €100 'sanl
rL ONLLIIN wooupeog ONILII €AD
an 1as 4VO
dn 1d9s OVH
NOILLVLSIONY 1wung-a1d O-V H
IN dn 18§ wdoo:¢ - weo'g HVO | MOHS d00d 9DIA¥ES dOOd NOTI0D 7100 "NOW
1NO FAON dO£:01-dOE*S
AV JONVINNOEd dOE:5-d00:€ Ad varv-olg
dn 1498 )
NOLLVYLSIONY 1oung-a1d OV He
dn 195 wdg:s — wreo:g OV HI | MOHS 4004 FOIAYES 4004 NOTI0O 1100 NNS
JONVINYO:Ed d0£:01-d8
MV JONVINNOIEd dO€:4~dT Ad vaiv-oldg

900C — ATSIAAM
HOVIISOAZC




90/12/6

1eH

d-v wooneq = -V TIvd
soueULIOfIsg SOASd = Ad

OV SlfeH MqIyxyd = D~V Hd

SO0y SUNISN 20O =(-V NOW

-V JOOH9AQ 10ATY = 4-V OF

eary A19[[eD pueIn = DO

H-V swooy Sunasjy 00240 = H-V O
-V swooy Sunedy AIS[[ED PueID = IV O

AV IVSAVIHTI Wd00:£-Nd00: 1 TIVH TVLIOTY 1 LYFONOD TVIOAdS -0SYD
DONILLIAN wdpQ:g —wep):s a-vo SLNAWLSIANI ¥FHSI
N LIgiHXA wdo:01 —weeQ:L -V Ha LDRNVINITION
JYANNIA v 1T1vd SANLSNANI TIIMAO00D
HONN'1 a->T11vd
SIWOO0Y LNOMVIYd H4d0
od SO0 LNOYVIId Wd9 - V8 4-v Od NOISNALXT NS 01100 "S3INL
VD
dn 14s wdp:01 - Wep):L g-v He LDNVNTTION
4209
uuiq wdpo:01 —wdpo:L ung-ald 0¥
NOLLJIOTH wdgQ:, —wdoo:$ OHA
N dyas wooy wdQ:Z1- Wepo:g d-v 1ive WANNIA F417T NO SN0
NMOQYVIL vung-3id TIvVe
o) NMO@IVIL Wd6 — NV8 a-v 11ve JANOYd 6 LOO 'NOW
1N0 IAON d9-dv
FONVINIOLIAd d¥-d0o:€
TVSYVIHTS HOAL dS1:Z-ds1:1
P\ YFAOTONVHD dz1-vé Ad 1 ATINVA-0S4D
dnigs
N dn 13s wd(o:¢- wepo:§ d-v 11vd WANNIA F41'T NO $SNJ04 8 100 'NNS
JIavil
ONILIIW N00:L-INV00:8 a-v NOW WVLS ~ NOLLVONAd AGNLIHM
LNO FAON WVZI-INdO1 Ad
FONVNIOIIAd WdO1-INd8 Ad
AV lvaddn NOE:L-WNdL TTIVH TVLIDTY 11 TVIISSVID-0S4D
499
ONILLATN a-v 1ive
ONILFIN g-v 04
oL LIGIHXA Wd6 — V8 ung-a1d 11ve LANOYd L 100 'LVS
JIAVHL
ONLLITN Nd00:L-INV00:8 d-v NOW WVLS — NOLLVONAT AGNLIHM
1NO FAON INVZI-IWdO1 Ad
FONVINIOIIAd NdO1-INdS8 Ad
AV lvaddn NdOE:L-NdL TIVH TV.LIOT 1 TVIISSVIO-0SdD
o} ONILIIN WdZ1 — INV8 VD SAIdVY ANVIO 40 ALID

900C — ATAdIM
HIOVTESOAEC]




